
AGENDA OF THE 
HAILEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday May 26, 2020 * Hailey City Hall Meeting Room 
5:30 PM 

Please join our meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

Via teleconference: +1 (872) 240-3311, Access Code: 543-667-133 
Via One-touch: United States tel:+18722403311,,543667133#, 

From your computer, tablet or smartphone: https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofHaileyCityCouncil 

ACTION ITEM = a vote may occur but is not required to be taken 
ACTION ITEM ................................................................................................................................................................... 

5:30 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER -             Open Session for Public Concerns 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
CA 222 Motion to ratify a letter from Mayor Burke to FaPo Holdings requesting an extension of the July 1, 2020 

deadline for the relocation of the Forest Service Warehouse Building pursuant to the Second Amended 
Development Agreement ACTION ITEM ...................................................................................................... 

CA 223 Motion to approve the Special Event, The Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park, to be held Monday through 
Friday beginning May 26th, 2020 through August 14th, 2020, from111:30am to 12:30pm, in Kiwanis Park 
ACTION ITEM ............................................................................................................................................... 

CA 224 Motion to approve the Special Event, ArborFest, to be held Saturday, June 13th, 2020 at McKercher Park and the 
Hope Garden from 10:00am until 2:00pm. ACTION ITEM .............................................................................. 

CA 225 Motion to approve unaudited Treasurer’s report for April 2020 ACTION ITEM .....................................................  

MAYOR’S REMARKS: 
MR 000  

PUBLIC HEARING: 
PH 226 Consideration of a recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission for a Preliminary Plat Subdivision 

Application (Phase I) by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, located at Block 2, 
Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of Block 2 is subdivided into 14 sublots consisting of seven (7) 
live-work units, one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes for a total of 23 residential 
units. This project is located on the corner of Shenandoah Drive and Countryside Boulevard within the Limited 
Business (LB) Zoning District ACTION ITEM………………………………………………………………. 

PH 227 Consideration of a recommendation by the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission regarding the Preliminary 
Plat Subdivision Application (Phase I) by S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC, represented by Alpine Enterprises Inc., 
for Quigley Townhomes, located at Lot 1A and Lot 2A of Quigley View Subdivision (631 East Croy Street), 
where Lot 1A and Lot 2A are subdivided into eight (8) townhouse sublots, located within the Limited 
Residential (LR-1) Zoning District. This project converts a condominium subdivision to a townhouse 
subdivision ACTION ITEM ............................................................................................................................. 

PH 228 Consideration of a recommendation by the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission regarding the Preliminary 
Plat Subdivision Application by Lena Cottages, LLC, represented by Blincoe Architecture, where Lot 9, Block 
3, Old Cutters Subdivision is subdivided into seven (7) sublots. This project is located within the General 
Residential (GR) Zoning District ACTION ITEM ............................................................................................ 

STAFF REPORTS:  Staff Reports        Council Reports  Mayor’s Reports 
SR 229 Draft of next City Council meeting agenda .................................................................................................................  

Matters & Motions from Executive Session or Workshop   
 Next Ordinance Number - 1263      Next Resolution Number- 2020-066 

1

5

11
17

29

83

123

172



--1--



--2--



--3--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--4--



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  
 
DATE: 05/26/2020    DEPARTMENT: CDD/PW   DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE:_______ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
SUBJECT:  
Request for approval to hold a special event, the event being, The Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park, to 
be held Kiwanis Park Monday through Friday, May 26, 2020 through August 14, 2020 (from 11:30 a.m. to 
1:30 p.m.). 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
AUTHORITY:  ID Code _________  IAR ___________  City Ordinance/Code ________ 
(IFAPPLICABLE) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
FISCAL IMPACT / PROJECT FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  Caselle #_______________________________ 
Budget Line Item #___________________________    YTD Line Item Balance $__________________ 
Estimated Hours Spent to Date: ________________ Estimated Completion Date: _______________ 
Staff Contact: ______________________________ Phone # _______________________________ 
Comments: 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OTHER AFFECTED CITY DEPARTMENTS: (IFAPPLICABLE) 

 City Administrator  
 City Attorney  
 City Clerk        
 Building 
 Engineer  
 Fire Dept. 

 Library 
 Mayor 
 Planning 
 Police 
 Public Works, Parks 
 P & Z Commission 

 Benefits Committee     
 Streets 
 Treasurer 
 _______________ 
 _______________ 
 _______________ 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Request for approval to hold a special event, the event being, The Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park, to 
be held Kiwanis Park Monday through Friday, May 26, 2020 through August 14, 2020 (from 11:30 a.m. to 
1:30 p.m.), and authorization for the Mayor to sign the special event decision and special event 
agreement.  
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS/APPROVAL: 
 
City Administrator _____________ Dept. Head in Attendance at Meeting (circle one) Yes  No 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Date ___________________________ 
 
 
City Clerk ______________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
FOLLOW-UP: 
*Ord./Res./Agrmt./Order Originals: Record   *Additional/Exceptional Originals to: ________________ 
Copies (all info.):    Copies (AIS only) 
Instrument # _______________________ 

--5--



CITY OF HAILEY    115 MAIN ST. S.,  SUITE H    HAILEY, IDAHO 83333    788-4221 
 
 

15/03/SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (08/02/05)  1 

 

DECISION 

 

Based on the Application for a Special Event Permit for The Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park, 
the City of Hailey, pursuant to Chapter 12.14 of the Hailey Municipal Code, approves the Application and 
grants the Special Event Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard Conditions 

a. The Applicant shall comply with the terms, plans, covenants and provisions of the 
Application, as approved or as modified by the City of Hailey. 

b. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations and 
ordinances before, during and after the Special Event(s).  

c. The Applicant shall execute an agreement, relating to the reimbursement of expenses, 
indemnification and other provisions immediately upon the approval of the application for the 
Special Events Permit. 

d.   In the event the Applicant fails to comply with all the conditions set forth herein, the City 
may revoke the Special Events Permit, in whole or in part. 

e. A supporting application is on file and shall be complied with.  
 
 

Additional Conditions 
 

a. Certificate of Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 naming the City of Hailey 
as additionally insured. 
 

 
DATED this 26th day of May, 2020.  

 

CITY OF HAILEY 
 

      By: ____________________________________                            
     Martha Burke, its Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 Mary Cone, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

--6--



CITY OF HAILEY    115 MAIN ST. S.,  SUITE H    HAILEY, IDAHO 83333    788-4221 

15/03/SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (08/02/05) 2

SPECIAL EVENT AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the granting of a special event permit by the City of Hailey (“the City”) for The 
Hunger Coalition Mobile Market, to be held at Kiwanis Park Monday through Friday, May 26, 2020 
through August 14, 2020 (from 11:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.), plus specified set up and teardown time, 
(“the Event”), and pursuant to Section 12.14 of the Hailey Municipal Code, the undersigned, as 
the applicant (“Applicant”) of a Special Event Permit from the City for the Event, does hereby 
agree to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City in repairing damage or providing 
any services or materials resulting from the Event.  The Applicant agrees that such costs may be 
deducted from a non-refundable security deposit or additional deposit as established by the City, 
and that if costs exceed any deposit made by the applicant, further reimbursement will be made 
to the City upon demand.  The Applicant hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
the City and its officers and employees, in their official and individual capacities, from any and 
all claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses 
and damages of any nature caused by or arising out of, or connected with the Event.  In the event 
either party hereto is required to retain counsel to enforce a provision of this Agreement, or to 
recover damages resulting from a breach hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
from the other party all reasonable attorney’s fees incurred herein or on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings.  The Applicant agrees to comply with all the laws and ordinances of the City of 
Hailey, Idaho applicable to the subject matter thereof, and to conduct the Event in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of the application for a Special Event Permit, as approved or as 
modified by the City, and all conditions of the Special Event Permit.  The Applicant agrees that 
the Special Event Permit is nontransferable and shall be conducted only for the dates and 
locations as approved by the City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Applicant and the City have executed this Agreement on this 
26th day of May, 2020. 

APPLICANT: 

By: ________________________________________ 

     ______________________________  
      (Please sign and print name and title, if applicable) 

CITY OF HAILEY: 

By: ________________________________________
       Martha Burke, its Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Mary Cone, its City Clerk 

--7--



--8--



--9--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--10--



 AGENDA  ITEM SUMMARY  
 
DATE:   5/26/20      DEPARTMENT:     PW        DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE:                       
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
SUBJECT:  
Request for approval to hold a special event, the event being ArborFest, to be held at McKercher Park on 
Saturday, June 13th, 2020 from 10am to 2pm, and authorization for the Mayor to sign the special event 
decision.   
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
AUTHORITY:  ID Code _________  IAR ___________  City Ordinance/Code ________ 
(IFAPPLICABLE) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
FISCAL IMPACT / PROJECT  FINANCIAL  ANALYSIS:  Caselle 
#_______________________________ 
Budget Line Item #___________________________    YTD Line Item Balance $__________________ 
Estimated Hours Spent to Date: ________________ Estimated Completion Date: _______________ 
Staff Contact: ______________________________ Phone # _______________________________ 
Comments: 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OTHER AFFECTED CITY DEPARTMENTS: (IFAPPLICABLE) 

 City Administrator  
 City Attorney  
 City Clerk        
 Building 
 Engineer  
 Fire Dept. 

 Library 
 Mayor 
 Planning 
 Police 
 Public Works, Parks 
 P & Z Commission 

 Benefits Committee     
 Streets 
 Treasurer 
 _______________ 
 _______________ 
 _______________ 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RECOMMENDATION FROM APPLICABLE DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Request for approval to hold a special event, the event being ArborFest, to be held at McKercher Park on 
Saturday, June 13th, 2020 from 10am to 2pm, and authorization for the Mayor to sign the special event 
decision.   
 
 
ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Date ___________________________ 
 
City Clerk ______________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
FOLLOW-UP: 
*Ord./Res./Agrmt./Order Originals: Record   *Additional/Exceptional Originals to: ________________ 
Copies (all info.):    Copies (AIS only) 
 

--11--



CITY OF HAILEY    115 MAIN ST. S.,  SUITE H    HAILEY, IDAHO 83333    788-4221 
 
 

15/03/SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (08/02/05)  1 

 

DECISION 

 

Based on the Application for a Special Event Permit for the ArborFest, the City of Hailey, 
pursuant to Chapter 12.14 of the Hailey Municipal Code, approves the Application and grants the Special 
Event Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard Conditions 

 

a. The Applicant shall comply with the terms, plans, covenants and provisions of the 
Application, as approved or as modified by the City of Hailey. 

b. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations and 
ordinances before, during and after the Special Event(s).  

c. The Applicant shall execute an agreement, relating to the reimbursement of expenses, 
indemnification and other provisions immediately upon the approval of the application for the 
Special Events Permit. 

d.   In the event the Applicant fails to comply with all the conditions set forth herein, the City 
may revoke the Special Events Permit, in whole or in part. 

e. A supporting application is on file and shall be complied with.  
 
 

Additional Conditions 
 
 

a. None 
 

 
DATED this 26th day of May, 2020.  

 

CITY OF HAILEY 
 

      By: ____________________________________                            
     Martha Burke, its Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 Mary Cone, City Clerk 

 

 
 

--12--



CITY OF HAILEY    115 MAIN ST. S.,  SUITE H    HAILEY, IDAHO 83333    788-4221 
 
 

15/03/SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (08/02/05)  2 

SPECIAL EVENT AGREEMENT 
 

In consideration of the granting of a special event permit by the City of Hailey (“the 
City”) for ArborFest (Saturday, June 13th, 2020 from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.),  plus specified set 
up and teardown time) (“the Event”), and pursuant to Section 12.14 of the Hailey Municipal 
Code, the undersigned, as the applicant (“Applicant”) of a Special Event Permit from the City for 
the Event, does hereby agree to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City in repairing 
damage or providing any services or materials resulting from the Event.  The Applicant agrees 
that such costs may be deducted from a non-refundable security deposit or additional deposit as 
established by the City, and that if costs exceed any deposit made by the applicant, further 
reimbursement will be made to the City upon demand.  The Applicant hereby agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its officers and employees, in their official and 
individual capacities, from any and all claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, lawsuits, 
judgments, attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses and damages of any nature caused by or arising out 
of, or connected with the Event.  In the event either party hereto is required to retain counsel to 
enforce a provision of this Agreement, or to recover damages resulting from a breach hereof, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all reasonable attorney’s fees 
incurred herein or on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings.  The Applicant agrees to comply 
with all the laws and ordinances of the City of Hailey, Idaho applicable to the subject matter 
thereof, and to conduct the Event in accordance with the terms and provisions of the application 
for a Special Event Permit, as approved or as modified by the City, and all conditions of the 
Special Event Permit.  The Applicant agrees that the Special Event Permit is nontransferable and 
shall be conducted only for the dates and locations as approved by the City. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Applicant and the City have executed this Agreement on this 
26th day of May, 2020. 
 
     APPLICANT: 
      
 
     By: ________________________________________ 

               ______________________________  
           (please sign and print name and title, if applicable) 
 
 
     CITY OF HAILEY: 
 
 
     By: ________________________________________                            
               Martha Burke, its Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Mary Cone, its City Clerk 

--13--



PARK RESERVATION APPLICATION 

Park: Field/Facility: 

Type of Event:  

Date(s) of Use: Time: From:    To:  

Day(s) of Use: M T W Th F Sat Sun 

 (Seasonal use limited to 4 days per week.) 

Applicant Information Organization Information (if applicable) 

Name:   Name:   

Mailing Address:   Mailing Address:   

Phone #:  Phone #:  

Email: Email:  

Fees: 
Daily Pavilion Rental 1 – 24 people  $50.00  

25 – 99 people  $100.00  
100 – 249 people $150.00  

Daily Sports Field Rental 1 – 24 people  $100.00  
25 – 99 people  $150.00  
100 – 249 people $200.00  

Daily Non-field Sport Rental 1 – 24 people  $50.00  
25 – 99 people  $100.00  
99 – 249 people $150.00  

Seasonal Sports Field Rental (Keefer choose north or south field) $300.00  
Seasonal Non-field Sport Rental $150.00  

Subtotal 

6% Tax 

Total Due: 

NOTE: Special Event Criteria 
Your event is a Special Event if it meets either of the following criteria: 1) it will require a street closure within any zoning district, or 
2) it is anticipated to attract 250 or more people at any one time within any zoning district. Special Event application procedures and
additional fees apply.

I hereby certify the above statements to be true, complete and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of Person Reserving Park: 

--14--



Dear Mayor and City Council, 

We request you consider our rescheduled ArborFest plans for June 13th.  The Hailey Tree 

Committee canceled their original plans for April due to Covid‐19 restrictions.  The Hailey Tree 

Committee (HTC)is planning a modified ArborFest celebration this year which will follow the 

City of Hailey Covid‐19 guidelines.  On Saturday June 13th, from 10 am to 2 pm HTC members 

will give out free seedlings to the public at two locations: at the Hope Garden by the 

courthouse and at McKercher Park.   We will ask that the public bring non‐perishable food 

item(s) for the Hunger Coalition in exchange for a seedling.   We will have a table set up with 

free information on tree planting and other tree care, as well as the updated tree list for Hailey.   

Information on this event will be posted on the Chamber site, Eye on Sun Valley and Idaho 

Mountain Express and the City of Hailey website.  

Sincerely, 

Linda Ries, Chair 

Hailey Tree Committee 

--15--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--16--



--17--



--18--



--19--



--20--



--21--



--22--



--23--



--24--



--25--



--26--



--27--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--28--



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  
 
DATE:  05/26/2020   DEPARTMENT:   Community Development   DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE:    LH 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-SUBJECT:   
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, to 
be located at located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of Block 2 is subdivided into 14 
sublots consisting of seven (7) live-work units, one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes 
for a total of 23 residential units.  
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

AUTHORITY:  ID Code ____________   IAR ___________  City Ordinance/Code Title 16  
(IFAPPLICABLE)          
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-BACKGROUND:   
On March 30, 2020, the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered a Preliminary Plat 
Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, located at Block 2, 
Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of Block 2 is subdivided into 14 sublots consisting of seven 
(7) live-work units, one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes for a total of 23 
residential units. This project is located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City 
of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho, within the Limited Business (LB) Zoning District. All driveways are 
oriented toward internal alleys (Heartland Way, Hopper way and Herder’s Way); all onsite parking is 
located below grade or within the proposed structures.  
 
A 69,696 square foot park is existing and meets the park requirements of the Hailey Municipal Code. The 
project is located in the Limited Business (LB) Zone District.  
 
This property is subject to a P.U.D. Development Agreement dated January 10, 2005 and Amendments 
to the Development Agreement dated December 12, 2009, December 20, 2010 and November 6, 2012. 
Design Review for the project (Phase I through IV) was approved December 16, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Staff Report  
2. Preliminary Plat Map, Site Plan and Landscape Plan 
3. Planning and Zoning Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, dated April 6, 2020 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FISCAL IMPACT / PROJECT FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  
Caselle #___________________ 
Budget Line Item #____________    YTD Line Item Balance $__________________ 
Estimated Hours Spent to Date:       Estimated Completion Date:  
Staff Contact: Lisa Horowitz    Phone # 788-9815 #13 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
- 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OTHER AFFECTED CITY DEPARTMENTS: (IFAPPLICABLE) 
__x _ City Attorney       ___City Administrator       _x__ Engineer ___ Building 
___ Library        _x__ planning         ___ Fire Dept. ___ _______________ 
___ Safety Committee    ___ P & Z Commission       ___ Police  ___ _______________ 
__x_ Streets        __x_ Public Works, Parks       ___Mayor  ___ _______________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
- 
RECOMMENDATION FROM APPLICABLE DEPARTMENT HEAD: 

 Conduct a public hearing on the Sweetwater Communities Preliminary Plat Application Block 2, Phase 1 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS/APPROVAL: 
City Administrator _____________ Dept. Head Attend Meeting (circle one) Yes  No 

--29--



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by 
Matt Watson, to be located at Parcel B2, Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision (located along 
Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho), finding that 
the application meets all City Standards, and that Conditions (a) through (j) are met.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt 
Watson, to be located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision (located along Shenandoah Drive, in 
Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho), finding that ________________ 
[Council should cite which standards are not met and provide the reason why each identified standard is 
not met]. 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing to __________________ [Council should specify a date]. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date     ______________________ 
City Clerk ______________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-FOLLOW-UP: 
*Ord./Res./Agrmt. /Order Originals: *Additional/Exceptional Originals to: ________________ 
Copies (all info.):    Copies  
Instrument # _______________________       

--30--



Return to AIS 

--31--



 
 
 
To:  Hailey City Council 
 
From:  Lisa Horowitz, Community Development Director 
 
Overview: Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Application by Kilgore Properties, LLC, represented 

by Matt Watson, located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of 
Block 2 is subdivided into 14 sublots consisting of seven (7) live-work units, one (1), ten-
unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes for a total of 23 residential units. 
This project is located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City 
of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho, within the Limited Business (LB) Zoning District.  

 
Hearing: May 26, 2020 
 
 
Applicant: Kilgore Properties, LLC 
 
Project:  Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision 
 
Request: Preliminary Plat Application  
 
Location:            Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision (Phase I) 
 
Size:                     6.50 acres (283,188 square feet) 

 
Zoning:                Limited Business (LB) Zone District 
 
Background: 
On March 30, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Plat Application by Kilgore 
Properties, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, to be located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision 
(located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, 
Idaho), where Phase 1 of Block 2 is subdivided into 14  sublots, consisting of seven (7) live-work units, 
one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes for a total of 23 residential units. . 
The total development comprises of 6.5 acres. This project is located with the Limited Business (LB) 
Zoning District. This property is subject to a P.U.D. Development Agreement dated January 10, 2005 and 
Amendments to the Development Agreement dated December 12, 2009, December 20, 2010 and 
November 6, 2012. Design Review was approved for this project on December 16, 2019. 
                         
Notice:  
Notice for the May 11, 220 public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on April 22, 
2020 and mailed to property owners and public agencies on April 22, 2020. The project was continued 
on record at the May 11, 2020 public hearing to May 26, 2020. 

STAFF REPORT  
Hailey City Council 

Regular Meeting of May 26, 2020 

--32--



 
Background: 
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt 
Watson, located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of Block 2 is subdivided into 
14 sublots consisting of seven (7) live-work units, one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex 
townhomes for a total of 23 residential units. This project is located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 
15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho, within the Limited Business (LB) Zoning 
District. All driveways are oriented toward internal alleys (Heartland Way, Hopper way and Herder’s 
Way); all onsite parking is located below grade or within the proposed structures.  
 
A 69,696 square foot park is existing and meets the park requirements of the Hailey Municipal Code. The 
project is located in the Limited Business (LB) Zone District.  
 
Procedural History: 
The Application was submitted on January 8, 2020 and certified complete on January 17, 2020. public 
hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission was planned for March 16, 2020, in the meeting 
room of Hailey City Hall. This project was continued on record at the March 16, 2020 public hearing to 
March 30, 2020. The Planning and Zoning Commission approved this project on March 30, 2020 and 
approved the Findings of Fact dated April 6, 2020 at the April 6, 2020 Public Hearing.  
 
As noted, this property is subject to a P.U.D. Development Agreement dated January 10, 2005 and 
Amendments to the Development Agreement dated December 12, 2009, December 20, 2010 and 
November 6, 2012. Design Review for the project (Phase I through IV) was approved December 16, 
2019. 
 

Standards of Evaluation for a Subdivision 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.06.050 Complete Application  

☒ ☐ ☐ Department 
Comments  

Engineering: No comments at this time.   

 Life/Safety: No comments at this time.  
 Water and Sewer: The Water and Wastewater Divisions, and Applicant Team have 

been working to resolve and/or solidify design details prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit. The items noted below have either been resolved and/or made 
Conditions of Approval (the Applicant’s response to said issues are noted in bold 
and italics): 
Water Division:  

- The plans do not show where the meter vaults will be set or show that 
there will be meter vaults going in. It appears a fire system will be going 
into Building #18. No isolation valve on the water main has been 
shown. A second line is going into the same building. Is this a separate 
domestic line? Please clarify. Water meter cans are now shown on 
water service lines, as well as Plan and Profile Sheets (Sheet C-300). 
The 4” water service for the condominium building is noted as typical, 

--33--



with valve shown on service. All 2” water services for condominium 
buildings are noted as typical.  

Wastewater Division:  
- Are sewer services connected to the center of each unit? Sewer laterals 

for townhouse units have been moved to the center of each unit.  
- There was no indication that the mainline going into the existing 

manhole SSMH 103 would need to be core drilled at a different angle 
than it currently exists. A note has been added to remove existing 
sewer main stub (Sheet C-300). A new main to be installed at 
proposed angle.  

- Any and all meter vaults that are located in asphalt or concrete shall 
have metal collars on them for the meter vault lids. This has been made 
a Condition of Approval.  

 
To ensure all items have been resolved, a final review and approval will be 
conducted prior to issuance of a Building Permit.    

 Building: No comments at this time. 
 Streets: The Streets Division and Applicant Team have been working to resolve 

and/or solidify design details prior to issuance of a Building Permit. The items 
noted below have either been resolved and/or made Conditions of Approval (the 
Applicant’s response to said issues are noted in bold and italics): 

- Continental crosswalks shall be installed instead of 12” lines. The 
crosswalk on Shenandoah Drive in Phase I has been changed and 
noted as a continental pattern (Sheet C-600). Future crosswalk in 
Phase II on Shenandoah Drive and Maple Leaf Drive have also been 
updated to be continental pattern.  

- The stop bar located on Countryside Boulevard in the east bound lane 
seems to be out of place. Please remedy. This stop bar has been 
removed (Sheet C-600).  

- The Signage and Striping Plan doesn’t call out all of the signs along 
Shenandoah Drive. There need to be accessible parking signs adjacent 
to the accessible on-street parking. Accessible parking signage has 
been shown by accessible parking stall(s) (Sheet C-600).  

- Will there be no parking fire lane at the entrances into the project? “No 
Parking – Fire Lane” Signage, noted as typical on entrances (Sheet C-
600).  

- Crosswalk Signs shall be provided at the Shenandoah Drive and Maple 
Leaf crosswalks on Shenandoah Drive. These signs have been added in 
our base files’ signage will be installed with crosswalks in Phase II of 
constructions.  

- An R7-203a Sign pertaining to snow routes shall be installed. “Snow 
Route – No Parking” signs have been shown on the Signage and 
Striping Plan (Sheet C-600).  

To ensure all items have been resolved, a final review and approval will be 
conducted prior to issuance of a Building Permit.    

 Landscaping/Parks: No comments at this time. 
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.010 

Development 
Standards 

Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be 
subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title 
and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in 

--34--



accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Staff 
Comments 

Please refer to the specific standards as noted herein. 

 16.04.020: Streets: 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   16.04.020 Streets: Streets shall be provided in all subdivisions where necessary to provide access 

and shall meet all standards below. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Development Standards: All streets in the subdivision must be platted and developed 
with a width, alignment, and improvements such that the street is adequate to safely 
accommodate existing and anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic and meets City 
standards.  Streets shall be aligned in such a manner as to provide through, safe and 
efficient access from and to adjacent developments and properties and shall provide 
for the integration of the proposed streets with the existing pattern. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Cul-De-Sacs; Dead-End Streets: Cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall be allowed only if 
connectivity is not possible due to surrounding topography or existing platted 
development.  Where allowed, such cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall comply with 
all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and ordinances.  Street 
rights-of-way extended into un-platted areas shall not be considered dead end streets. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets or alleys are proposed.   

☒ ☐ ☐ C. Access: More than one access may be required based on the potential for impairment 
of a single access by vehicle congestion, terrain, climatic conditions or other factors 
that could limit access. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. Design: Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles 
and no street shall intersect any other street at less than eighty (80) degrees.  Where 
possible, four-way intersections shall be used.  A recommended distance of 500 feet, 
with a maximum of 750 feet, measured from the center line, shall separate any 
intersection.  Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to speed 
humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, meanderings, 
chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street design.  Alternate 
traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation by the City 
Engineer.  Three-way intersections shall only be permitted where most appropriate or 
where no other configuration is possible.  A minimum distance of 150 feet, measured 
from the center line, shall separate any 2 three-way intersections.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. Centerlines: Street centerlines which deflect more than five (5) degrees shall be 
connected by a curve.  The radius of the curve for the center line shall not be more 
than 500 feet for an arterial street, 166 feet for a collector street and 89 feet for a 
residential street. Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to 
speed humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, 
meanderings, chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street 
design. Alternate traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation 
by the City Engineer.   

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as Shenandoah Drive and Maple Leaf Drive are existing. Windmill Way, a 
26’-wide private alley, is proposed. No traffic calming measures are proposed at 
this time.  

F. Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The 

--35--



☒ ☐ ☐ minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be 
as specified in City Standards for the type of street. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ G.  
 
 

Roadways: Roadway, for the purpose of this section, shall be defined as the area of 
asphalt from curb face to curb face or edge to edge.  Roadway includes areas for 
vehicle travel and may include parallel or angle in parking areas. The width of 
roadways shall be in accordance with the adopted City Standards for road construction. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. Road Grades: Road Grades shall be at least two percent (2%) and shall not generally 
exceed six percent (6%).  Grade may exceed 6%, where necessary, by 1% (total 7%) for 
no more than 300 feet or 2% (total 8%) for no more than 150 feet. No excess grade 
shall be located within 200 feet of any other excess grade nor there any horizontal 
deflection in the roadway greater than 30 degrees within 300 feet of where the excess 
grade decreases to a 2% slope.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ I.  Runoff: The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate 
size and number to contain any runoff within the streets in the subdivision in 
conformance with the applicable Federal, State and local regulations. The developer 
shall provide copies of state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells). Drainage 
plans shall be reviewed by City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer.  
Developer shall provide a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm water 
Discharge from Construction Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than 
one acre. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ J. Signage: The developer shall provide and install all street and traffic control signs in 
accordance with City Standards. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ K. Dedication; Names: All streets and alleys within any subdivision shall be dedicated for 
public use, except as provided herein.  New street names (public and private) shall not 
be the same or similar to any other street names used in Blaine County. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   L. Private Streets:  

☐ ☐ ☒ L. 1.  Private streets may be allowed (a) to serve a maximum of five (5) residential dwelling 
units, (b) within Planned Unit Developments, or (c) within commercial developments in 
the Business, Limited Business, Neighborhood Business, Light Industrial, Technological 
Industry, and Service Commercial Industrial districts.  Private streets are allowed at the 
sole discretion of the Council, except that no Arterial or Major Street, or Collector or 
Secondary Street may be private.  Private streets shall have a minimum total width of 36 
feet, shall be constructed to all other applicable City Standards including paving, and 
shall be maintained by an owner’s association. 
 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as Heartland Way, Hopper Way and Herder’s Way are private alleys and 
will be maintained by the homeowner’s association. The private alleys meet the 
minimum total width of 26’-wide and shall be constructed to meet City 
Standards.  

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 2.  Private streets, wherever possible, shall provide interconnection with other public 
streets and private streets.  

--36--



   Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 3.  The area designated for private streets shall be platted as a separate parcel according to 
subsection 16.04.060C below. The plat shall clearly indicate that the parcel is unbuildable 
except for public vehicular and public pedestrian access and ingress/egress, utilities or 
as otherwise specified on the plat.   

   Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 4.  Private street names shall not end with the word “Road”, “Boulevard”, “Avenue”, 
“Drive” or “Street”.  Private streets serving five (5) or fewer dwelling units shall not be 
named. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 5.  Private streets shall have adequate and unencumbered 10-foot wide snow storage 
easements on both sides of the street, or an accessible dedicated snow storage 
easement representing not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the improved area of 
the private street.  Private street snow storage easements shall not be combined with, 
or encumber, required on-site snow storage areas. 

    Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 6. Subdivisions with private streets shall provide two (2) additional parking spaces per 
dwelling unit for guest and/or overflow parking.  These spaces may be located (a) within 
the residential lot (e.g., between the garage and the roadway), (b) as parallel spaces 
within the street parcel or easement adjacent to the travel lanes, (c) in a designated 
guest parking area, or (d) as a combination thereof.  Guest/overflow parking spaces are 
in addition to the minimum number of parking spaces required pursuant to chapter 
17.09 of this code. The dimension of guest/overflow parking spaces shall be no less than 
ten feet by twenty feet (10’x20’) if angle parking, or ten feet by twenty-four feet (10’x24’) 
if parallel.  Guest overflow parking spaces shall be improved with asphalt, gravel, pavers, 
grass block, or another all-weather dustless surface.  No part of any required 
guest/overflow parking spaces shall be utilized for snow storage. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   M.  Driveways:  

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 1.  Driveways may provide access to not more than two (2) residential dwelling units.  
Where a parcel to be subdivided will have one lot fronting on a street, not more than 
one additional single-family lot accessed by a driveway may be created in the rear of the 
parcel.  In such a subdivision, where feasible (e.g., no driveway already exists), both lots 
shall share access via a single driveway.  Driveways shall not be named.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 2.  Driveways shall be constructed with an all-weather surface and shall have the following 
minimum roadway widths: 

a) Accessing one residential unit: twelve feet (12’) 
b) Accessing two residential units: sixteen feet (16’)  

No portion of the required fire lane width of any driveway may be utilized for parking, 
above ground utility structures, dumpsters or other service areas, snow storage or any 
other obstructions.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ M. 3.  Driveways longer than 150 feet must have a turnaround area approved by the Fire 
Department.  Fire lane signage must be provided as approved by the Fire Department. 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no driveways exceed 150’. 

--37--



☒ ☐ ☐ M. 4. Driveways accessing more than one residential dwelling unit shall be maintained by an 
owner’s association, or in accordance with a plat note.   

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 5. The area designated for a driveway serving more than one dwelling unit shall be 
platted as a separate unbuildable parcel, or as a dedicated driveway easement.  
Easements and parcels shall clearly indicate the beneficiary of the easement or parcel 
and that the property is unbuildable except for ingress/egress, utilities or as otherwise 
specified on the plat.  A building envelope may be required in order to provide for 
adequate building setback. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 6. No driveway shall interfere with maintenance of existing infrastructure and shall be 
located to have the least adverse impact on residential dwelling units, existing or to be 
constructed, on the lot the easement encumbers and on adjacent lots. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ N.  Parking Access Lane: A parking access lane shall not be considered a street but shall 
comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and 
ordinances. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ O. Fire Lanes: Required fire lanes, whether in private streets, driveways or parking access 
lanes, shall comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes 
and ordinances. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.030: Sidewalks and Drainage Improvements  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Sidewalks and drainage improvements are required in all zoning districts and shall be 
located and constructed according to applicable City standards, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. The length of sidewalks and drainage improvements constructed shall be equal to the 
length of the subject property line(s) adjacent to any public street or private street. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C. New sidewalks shall be planned to provide pedestrian connections to any existing and 
future sidewalks adjacent to the site.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. Sites located adjacent to a public street or private street that are not currently through 
streets, regardless whether the street may provide a connection to future streets, shall 
provide sidewalks to facilitate future pedestrian connections.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. The requirement for sidewalk and drainage improvements are not required for any lot 
line adjustment.  

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

16.04.040: Alleys and Easements 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

--38--



Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   A.  Alleys:  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 1. Alleys shall be provided in all Business District and Limited Business District 
developments where feasible. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.    

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. The minimum width of an alley shall be twenty-six (26’) feet.  
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. All alleys shall be dedicated to the public or provide for public access. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 4. All infrastructures to be installed underground shall, where possible, be 
installed in the alleys platted. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 5. Alleys in commercial areas shall be improved with drainage as appropriate and which 
the design meets the approval of the City Engineer.  The Developer shall provide storm 
sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and number to contain any runoff 
within the streets in the subdivision upon the property in conformance with the latest 
applicable Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of 
state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed 
by City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 6. Dead-end alleys shall not be allowed. 
Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no dead-end alleys are proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 7. Where alleys are not provided, easements of not less than ten (10) feet in width may 
be required on each side of all rear and/or side lot lines (total width = 20 feet) where 
necessary for wires, conduits, storm or sanitary sewers, gas and water lines.  
Easements of greater width may be required along lines, across lots, or along 
boundaries, where necessary for surface drainage or for the extension of utilities. 

Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

Easements.  Easements, defined as the use of land not having all the rights of 
ownership and limited to the purposes designated on the plat, shall be placed on the 
plat as appropriate.  Plats shall show the entity to which the easement has been 
granted.  Easements shall be provided for the following purposes: 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. To provide access through or to any property for the purpose of providing utilities, 
emergency services, public access, private access, recreation, deliveries or such other 
purpose.  Any subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a 20-foot 
wide fisherman’s access easement, measured from the Mean High-Water Mark, which 
shall provide for non-motorized public access.  Additionally, in appropriate areas, an 
easement providing non-motorized public access through the subdivision to the river 
shall be required as a sportsman’s access. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this site does not border the Big Wood River.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. To provide protection from or buffering for any natural resource, riparian area, 
hazardous area, or other limitation or amenity on, under, or over the land.  Any 
subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a one hundred (100) foot 
wide riparian setback easement, measured from the Mean High-Water Mark, upon 

--39--



which no permanent structure shall be built, in order to protect the natural vegetation 
and wildlife along the river bank and to protect structures from damage or loss due to 
river bank erosion. A twenty-five (25) foot wide riparian setback easement shall be 
dedicated adjacent to tributaries of the Big Wood River.  Removal and maintenance of 
live or dead vegetation within the riparian setback easement is controlled by the 
applicable bulk requirement of the Flood Hazard Overlay District.  The riparian setback 
easement shall be fenced off during any construction on the property. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. To provide for the storage of snow, drainage areas or the conduct of irrigation waters.  
Snow storage areas shall be not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of parking, 
sidewalk and other circulation areas.  No dimension of any snow storage area may be 
less than 10 feet.  All snow storage areas shall be accessible and shall not be located 
over any above ground utilities, such as transformers. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

16.04.050: Blocks 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.04.050 Blocks: The length, width and shape of blocks shall be determined with due regard to 
adequate building sites suitable to the special needs of the type of use contemplated, 
the zoning requirements as to lot size and dimensions, the need for convenient access 
and safe circulation and the limitations and opportunities of topography. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no blocks are proposed. 

16.04.060: Lots 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.060 Lots: All lots shown on the subdivision plat must conform to the minimum standards 
for lots in the District in which the subdivision is planned. The City will generally not 
approve single-family residential lots larger than one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 square 
feet).  In the event a single-family residential lot greater than one-half (1/2) acre is 
platted, irrigation shall be restricted to not more than one-half (1/2) acre, pursuant to 
Idaho Code §42-111, and such restriction shall be included as a plat note.  District 
regulations are found in the Zoning Chapter. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. If lots are more than double the minimum size required for the zoning district, the 
Developer may be required to arrange lots in anticipation of future re-subdivision and 
provide for future streets where necessary to serve potential lots, unless the plat 
restricts further subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Double frontage lots shall be prohibited except where unusual topography, a more 
integrated street plan, or other conditions make it undesirable to meet this 
requirement. Double frontage lots are those created by either public or private streets, 
but not by driveways or alleys. Subdivisions providing a platted parcel of 25 feet or 
more between any street right-of-way and any single row of lots shall not be 
considered to have platted double frontage lots.  The 25-foot wide parcel provided 
must be landscaped to provide a buffer between the street and the lot(s). 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no double frontage lots are proposed.  

--40--



☐ ☐ ☒ C. No unbuildable lots shall be platted.  Platted areas that are not buildable shall be noted 
as such and designated as “parcels” on the plat.  Green Space shall be clearly 
designated as such on the plat. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. A single flag lot may be permitted at the sole discretion of the Hearing Examiner or 
Commission and Council, in which the “flagpole” projection is serving as a driveway as 
provided herein, providing connection to and frontage on a public or a private street.   
Once established, a flag lot may not be further subdivided, but a lot line adjustment of 
a flag lot is not considered a further subdivision. The “flagpole” portion of the lot shall 
be included in lot area but shall not be considered in determining minimum lot width.  
The “flagpole” shall be of adequate width to accommodate a driveway as required by 
this ordinance, fire and other applicable codes.  Flag lots within the Townsite Overlay 
District are not allowed, except where parcels do not have street access, such as 
parcels adjacent to the ITD right-of-way. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no flag lots are proposed.  

☒ ☐ ☐ E. All lots shall have frontage on a public or private street.  No frontage width shall be less 
than the required width of a driveway as provided under Sections 4.1.11.1 and 4.5.4 of 
this Ordinance.  Townhouse Sub-Lots are excluded from this requirement; provided, 
however, that Townhouse Developments shall have frontage on a street. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ F. In the Townsite Overlay District, original Townsite lots shall be subdivided such that 
the new platted lots are oriented the same as the original lots, i.e. lots shall be 
subdivided in such a way as to maintain frontage on both the street and alley.  
Exceptions may be made for corner properties with historic structures. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this project is not located within the Townsite Overlay (TO) Zone District.  

16.04.070: Orderly Development  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Phasing Required: Development of subdivisions shall be phased to avoid the extension 
of City services, roads and utilities through undeveloped land. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Agreement: Developers requesting phased subdivisions shall enter into a phasing 
agreement with the City.  Any phasing agreement shall be approved and executed by 
the Council and the Developer on or before the preliminary plat approval by the 
Council. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ C. Mitigation of Negative Effects: No subdivision shall be approved which affects the 
ability of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver services 
without compromising quality of service delivery to current residents or imposing 
substantial additional public costs upon current residents, unless the Developer 
provides for the mitigation of the effects of subdivision. Such mitigation may include, 
but is not limited to the following: 

a) Provision of on-site or off-site street or intersection improvements. 
b) Provision of other off-site improvements. 
c) Dedications and/or public improvements on property frontages. 
d) Dedication or provision of parks or green space. 
e) Provision of public service facilities. 
f) Construction of flood control canals or devices. 

--41--



g) Provisions for ongoing maintenance. 
Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ D.  When the developer of contiguous parcels proposes to subdivide any portion of the 
contiguous parcels, an area development plan shall be submitted and approved. The 
Commission and Council shall evaluate the following basic site criteria and make 
appropriate findings of fact: 

1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system 
and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. 

2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle 
ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green 
space, public lands, or other destinations. 

3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective 
layout feasible. 

4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in 
the most effective layout feasible. 

5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels. 
6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels. 
7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural 

resource areas. 
The commission and council may require that any or all contiguous parcels be included 
in the subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

16.04.080: Perimeter Walls, Gates and Berms  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.04.080 The City of Hailey shall not approve any residential subdivision application that 
includes any type of perimeter wall or gate that restricts access to the subdivision.  This 
regulation does not prohibit fences on or around individual lots.  The City shall also not 
allow any perimeter landscape berm more than 3’ higher than the previously existing 
(original) grade. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no perimeter walls, gates or landscape berms are proposed. Retaining 
walls are proposed to be located at the western entrance to the townhomes and 
will be constructed of materials that have been utilized elsewhere within the 
Sweetwater Development. Said walls will be constructed out of the same block 
materials used in previous phases. 

16.04.090: Cuts, Fills, Grading and Drainage  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Plans Required: Proposed subdivisions shall be carefully planned to be compatible with 
natural topography, soil conditions, geology and hydrology of the site, as well as to 
minimize cuts; fills, alterations of topography, streams, drainage channels; and 
disruption of soils or vegetation.  Fill within the floodplain shall comply with the 
requirements of the Flood Hazard Overlay District of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. A preliminary soil report prepared by a qualified engineer may be required by the 
Hearing Examiner or Commission and/or Council as part of the preliminary plat 
application. 

--42--



Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the City Engineer has not required a Soils Report from the Applicant. A 
Soils Report, prepared by Butler and Associates, was submitted in 2006, and is 
available for review, if so desired.  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. A preliminary grading plan prepared by a civil engineer may be required by the Hearing 
Examiner or Commission and/or the Council as part of the preliminary plat application, 
to contain the following information: 

a) Proposed contours at a maximum of two (2) foot contour intervals; 
b) Cut and fill banks in pad elevations; 
c) Drainage patterns; 
d) Areas where trees and/or natural vegetation will be preserved; 
e) Location of all street and utility improvements including driveways to 

building envelopes; and   
f) Any other information which may reasonably be required by the 

Administrator, Hearing Examiner, Commission and/or Council. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.. 

   B. Design Standards: The proposed subdivision shall conform to the following design 
standards:  

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 1.  Grading shall be designed to blend with natural land forms and to minimize the 
necessity of padding or terracing of building sites, excavation for foundations, and 
minimize the necessity of cuts and fills for streets and driveways. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Areas within a subdivision which are not well suited for development because of 
existing soil conditions, steepness of slope, geology or hydrology shall be allocated for 
Green Space for the benefit of future property owners within the subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. Where existing soils and vegetation are disrupted by subdivision development, 
provision shall be made by the Developer for Revegetation of disturbed areas with 
perennial vegetation sufficient to stabilize the soil upon completion of the 
construction, including temporary irrigation for a sufficient period to establish 
perennial vegetation.  Until such time as the vegetation has been installed and 
established, the Developer shall maintain and protect all disturbed surfaces from 
erosion. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 4. Where cuts, fills or other excavation are necessary, the following development 
standards shall apply: 

a) Fill areas for structures or roads shall be prepared by removing all organic 
material detrimental to proper compaction for soil stability. 

b) Fill for structures or roads shall be compacted to at least 95 percent of 
maximum density as determined by American Association State Highway 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and American Society of Testing & 
Materials (ASTM). 

c) Cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontals to one vertical.  
Subsurface drainage shall be provided as necessary for stability. 

d) Fill slopes shall be no steeper than three horizontals to one vertical.  Neither 
cut nor fill slopes shall be located on natural slopes of three to one or 
steeper, or where fill slope toes out within twelve (12) feet horizontally of the 
top of existing or planned cut slope. 

e) Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes shall be set back from structures and 
property lines as necessary to accommodate drainage features and drainage 
structures. 

--43--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  
 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 5. The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and 
number to contain the runoff upon the property in conformance with the applicable 
Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of state 
permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed by 
planning staff and shall meet the approval of the City engineer. Developer shall provide 
a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm-water Discharge from Construction 
Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than one acre. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.100: Overlay Districts  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   A. Flood Hazard Overlay District: 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivision located within the Flood Hazard Overlay District 
shall comply with all provisions of Section 4.10 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met..  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2.  Subdivisions located partially in the Flood Hazard Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Flood Hazard Overlay District to the extent possible. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met..  

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. Any platted lots adjacent to the Big Wood River or its tributaries shall have designated 
building envelopes. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located adjacent to the Big Wood River 
or its tributaries.  

☒ ☐ ☐ B. Hillside Overlay District: 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivisions located within the Hillside Overlay District shall 
comply with all provisions of Section 4.14, of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located within the Hillside Overlay 
District.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Subdivisions located partially in the Hillside Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Hillside Overlay District. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located within the Hillside Overlay 
District. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. All approved subdivisions shall contain a condition that a Site Alteration Permit is 
required before any development occurs. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.110: Parks, Pathways and Other Green Spaces 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Parks and Pathways: Unless otherwise provided, every subdivision shall set aside a 
Park and/or Pathway(s) in accordance with standards set forth herein. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

                  A. 1. Parks: 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. a. The developer of any subdivision, or any part thereof, consisting of three (3) or more 
residential lots, including residential townhouse sub-lots and residential condominium 
units, without regard to the number of phases within the subdivision, shall set aside or 

--44--



acquire land area within, adjacent to or in the general vicinity of the subdivision for 
Parks.  Parks shall be developed within the City of Hailey and set aside in accordance 
with the following formula: 
  
P = x multiplied by .0277 
 
“P” is the Parks contribution in acres 
 
“x” is the number of single-family lots, residential townhouse sub-lots or residential 
condominium units contained within the plat. Where multi-family lots are being 
platted with no fixed number of units, “x” is maximum number of residential lots, sub-
lots, and units possible within the subdivision based on current zoning regulations. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.1.b In the event the subdivision is located in the Business (B), Limited Business (LB), 
Neighborhood Business (NB), or Transitional (TN) zoning districts, the area required for 
a Park shall be reduced by 75%, but in no event shall the area required for a 
Park/Cultural Space exceed 17.5% of the area of the lot(s) being developed.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. Pathways: The developer of any subdivision, or any part thereof, shall provide 
pathways for all trails and paths identified in the master plan that are located on the 
property to be subdivided or on City property adjacent to the property to be 
subdivided, and sidewalks required by this ordinance.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   
 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Multiple Ownership:  Where a parcel of land is owned or otherwise controlled, in any 
manner, directly or indirectly: 

a) By the same individual(s) or entity(ies), including but not limited to 
corporation(s), partnership(s), limited liability company(ies) or trust(s), or 

b) By different individuals or entities, including but not limited to corporations, 
partnerships, limited liability companies or trusts where a) such individual(s) 
or entity(ies) have a controlling ownership or contractual right with the other 
individual(s) or entity(ies), or b) the same individual(s) or entity(ies) act in any 
manner as an employee, owner, partner, agent, stockholder, director, 
member, officer or trustee of the entity(ies),  

c) Multiple subdivisions of the parcel that cumulatively result in three (3) or 
more residential lots, townhouse sub-lots or condominium units, are subject 
to the provisions of this ordinance, and shall provide the required 
improvements subject to the required standards at or before the platting or 
development of the lots, sub-lots or units. 

d) Parks and Lands Board: The parks and lands board shall review and make a 
recommendation to the hearing examiner or commission and council 
regarding each application subject to the provisions of Section 4.10 of this 
ordinance. Such recommendation will be based on compliance with the 
master plan and provisions of this ordinance. 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ C.  Parks and Lands Board: The parks and lands board shall review and make a 
recommendation to the hearing examiner or commission and council regarding each 
application subject to the provisions of Section 4.10 of this ordinance. Such 
recommendation will be based on compliance with the master plan and provisions of 
this ordinance. 

--45--



   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   D. Minimum Requirements: 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. 1. Private Green Space: Use and maintenance of any privately-owned green space shall be 
controlled by recorded covenants or restrictions which run with the land in favor of the 
future owners of the property within the tract and which cannot be modified without 
the consent of the council. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. 2. Neighborhood Park: A neighborhood park shall include finished grading and ground 
cover, large grassy areas, trees and shrubs, sheltered picnic table(s), trash container(s), 
dog station(s), bike racks, park bench(es), parking as required by ordinance, and two or 
more of the following: play structure, restrooms, an athletic field, trails, hard surface 
multiple use court (tennis or basketball courts), or gardens that demonstrate 
conservation principles.  Neighborhood Parks shall provide an average of 15 trees per 
acre, of which at least 15% shall be of 4" caliper or greater.  A maximum of 20% of any 
single tree species may be used.  Landscaping and irrigation shall integrate water 
conservation.  A neighborhood park shall be deeded to the City upon completion, 
unless otherwise agreed upon by the developer and City.   

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☒ D. 3. Mini Park:  A mini park shall include finished grading and ground cover, trees and 
shrubs, picnic table(s), trash container(s), dog station(s), bike racks and park bench(es).  
All mini parks shall provide an average of 15 trees per acre, of which at least 15% shall 
be of 4" caliper or greater. A maximum of 20% of any single tree species may be used.  
Landscaping and irrigation shall integrate water conservation. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. 4. Park/Cultural Space:  A park/cultural space shall include benches, planters, trees, 
public art, water features and other elements that would create a gathering place.  
Connective elements, such as parkways or enhanced sidewalks may also qualify where 
such elements connect two or more parks or park/cultural spaces. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. 5. Pathway:  Pathways shall have a minimum twenty-foot (20’) right-of-way width and 
shall be paved or improved as recommended by the Parks and Lands Board.  
Construction of Pathways shall be undertaken at the same time as other public 
improvements are installed within the development, unless the Council otherwise 
allows when deemed beneficial for the project. The Developer shall be entitled to 
receive a Park dedication credit only if the Developer completes and constructs a 
Pathway identified in the Master Plan or completes and constructs a Pathway not 
identified in the Master Plan where the Pathway connects to existing or proposed trails 
identified in the Master Plan.  The City may permit easements to be granted by 
Developers for Pathways identified in the Master Plan, thereby allowing the Developer 
to include the land area in the determination of setbacks and building density on the 
site, but in such cases, a Park dedication credit will not be given.  A Developer is 
entitled to receive a credit against any area required for a Park for every square foot of 
qualified dedicated Pathway right-of-way. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. Specific Park Standards: All Parks shall meet the following criteria for development, 
location and size (unless unusual conditions exist that prohibit meeting one or more of 
the criteria): 

--46--



☒ ☐ ☐ E. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by Subsection D of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 2. Shall provide safe and convenient access, including ADA standards. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 3. Shall not be gated so as to restrict access and shall not be configured in such a manner 
that will create a perception of intruding on private space.  If a Park is privately owned 
and maintained, the use of the park shall not be exclusive to the homeowners, 
residents or employees of the development. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. 4. Shall be configured in size, shape, topography and improvements to be functional for 
the intended users.  To be eligible for Park dedication, the land must, at a minimum, be 
located on slopes less than 25 degrees, and outside of drain ways, floodways and 
wetland areas.  Mini Parks shall not be occupied by non-recreational buildings and shall 
be available for the use of all the residents or employees of the proposed subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ E. 5. Shall not create undue negative impact on adjacent properties and shall be buffered 
from conflicting land uses. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 6. Shall require low maintenance or provide for maintenance or maintenance 
endowment. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ F. Specific Pathway Standards:  All Pathways shall meet the following criteria for 
development, location and size (unless unusual conditions exist that prohibit meeting 
one or more of the criteria): 

☒ ☐ ☐ F. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by Subsection D of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ F. 2. Shall be connected in a useful manner to other Parks, Pathways, Green Space and 
recreation and community assets.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   G. Specific Green Space Standards:  If green space is required or offered as part of a 
subdivision, townhouse or condominium development, all green space shall meet the 
following criteria for development, location and size (unless unusual conditions exist 
that prohibit meeting one or more of the criteria): 

☒  ☐ ☐ G. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by section 4.10.04 of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☐ ☐ ☒ G. 2. Public and private green spaces on the same property or adjacent properties shall be 
complementary to one another.  Green space within proposed developments shall be 
designed to be contiguous and interconnecting with any adjacent Green Space (both 
existing and potential future space). 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as public and private green spaces on the same property or adjacent 
properties are not proposed and/or existing.   

☒ ☐ ☐ G. 3. The use of the private green space shall be restricted to Parks, Pathways, trails or other 
recreational purposes, unless otherwise allowed by the City. 

--47--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ G. 4. The private ownership and maintenance of green space shall be adequately provided 
for by written agreement. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   H.  In-Lieu Contributions: 

☐ ☐ ☒ H. 1. After receiving a recommendation by the Parks and Lands Board, the Council may at 
their discretion approve and accept voluntary cash contributions in lieu of Park land 
dedication and Park improvements.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 2. The voluntary cash contributions in lieu of Park land shall be equivalent to the area of 
land (e.g., square footage) required to be dedicated under this ordinance multiplied by 
the fair market value of the land (e.g., $/square foot) in the development at the time of 
preliminary plat approval by the Council.  The City shall identify the location of the 
property to be appraised, using the standards in Sections 4.10.5.4 and 4.10.5.5 of these 
ordinances.  The appraisal shall be submitted by a mutually agreed upon appraiser and 
paid for by the applicant.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 3.  Except as otherwise provided, the voluntary cash contribution in lieu of Park land shall 
also include the cost for Park improvements, including all costs of acquisition, 
construction and all related costs.  The cost for such improvements shall be based upon 
the estimated costs provided by a qualified contractor and/or vendor.  In the Business 
(B), Limited Business (LB), Neighborhood Business (NB) and Transitional (TN) zoning 
districts, in-lieu contributions will not include the cost for Park improvements. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 4. In-lieu contributions must be segregated by the City and not used for any other 
purpose other than the acquisition of Park land and/or Park improvements, which may 
include upgrades and replacement of Park improvements.  Such funds should be used, 
whenever feasible or practicable, on improvements within walking distance of the 
residents of the subdivision.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05: Improvements Required:  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.010 Minimum Improvements Required: It shall be a requirement of the Developer to 
construct the minimum infrastructure improvements set forth herein and any required 
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision, all to City Standards and procedures, 
set forth in Title 18 of the Hailey Municipal Code and adopted by ordinance in 
accordance with the notice and hearing procedures provided in Idaho Code §67-6509. 
Alternatives to the minimum improvement standards may be recommended for 
approval by the City Engineer and approved by the City Council at its sole discretion 
only upon showing that the alternative is clearly superior in design and effectiveness 
and will promote the public health, safety and general welfare. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Plans Filed, maintained: Six (6) copies of all improvement plans shall be filed with the 
City Engineer and made available to each department head.  Upon final approval two 
(2) sets of revised plans shall be returned to the Developer at the pre-construction 

--48--



conference with the City Engineer’s written approval thereon.  One set of final plans 
shall be on-site at all times for inspection purposes and to note all field changes upon. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B.  Preconstruction Meeting: Prior to the start of any construction, it shall be required that 
a pre-construction meeting be conducted with the Developer or his authorized 
representative/engineer, the contractor, the City Engineer and appropriate City 
departments.  An approved set of plans shall be provided to the Developer and 
contractor at or shortly after this meeting. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C.  Term of Guarantee of Improvements: The developer shall guarantee all improvements 
pursuant to this Section for no less than one year from the date of approval of all 
improvements as complete and satisfactory by the City engineer, except that parks 
shall be guaranteed and maintained by the developer for a period of two years. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.020: Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.020 Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping: The developer shall construct all streets, 

alleys, curb and gutter, lighting, sidewalks, street trees and landscaping, and irrigation 
systems to meet City Standards, the requirements of this ordinance, the approval of 
the Council, and to the finished grades which have been officially approved by the City 
engineer as shown upon approved plans and profiles.  The developer shall pave all 
streets and alleys with an asphalt plant-mix and shall chip-seal streets and alleys within 
one year of construction.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Street Cuts: Street cuts made for the installation of services under any existing 
improved public street shall be repaired in a manner which shall satisfy the Street 
Superintendent, shall have been approved by the Hailey City Engineer or his authorized 
representative, and shall meet City Standards.  Repair may include patching, skim coats 
of asphalt or, if the total area of asphalt removed exceeds 25% of the street area, the 
complete removal and replacement of all paving adjacent to the development.  Street 
cut repairs shall also be guaranteed for no less than one year. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B.  Signage: Street name signs and traffic control signs shall be erected by the Developer in 
accordance with City Standard, and the street name signs and traffic control signs shall 
thereafter be maintained by the City. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C.  Streetlights: Street lights in the Recreational Green Belt, Limited Residential, General 
Residential, and Transitional zoning districts are not required improvements.  Where 
proposed, street lighting in all zoning districts shall meet all requirements of Chapter 
VIIIB of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  
 
 

16.05.030: Sewer Connections 
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.030 Sewer Connections: The developer shall construct a municipal sanitary sewer 

connection for each and every developable lot within the development.  The developer 
shall provide sewer mains of adequate size and configuration in accordance with City 
standards, and all federal, state, and local regulations. Such mains shall provide 

--49--



wastewater flow throughout the development.  All sewer plans shall be submitted to 
the City engineer for review and approval.  At the City engineer’s discretion, plans may 
be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
for review and comments.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.040: Water Connections 

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Requirements: The developer shall construct a municipal potable water connection, 
water meter and water meter vault in accordance with City Standards or other 
equipment as may be approved by the City engineer, for each and every developable 
lot within the development.  The developer shall provide water mains and services of 
adequate size and configuration in accordance with City Standards, and all federal, 
state, and local regulations.  Such water connection shall provide all necessary 
appurtenances for fire protection, including fire hydrants, which shall be located in 
accordance with the IFC and under the approval of the Hailey Fire Chief.  All water 
plans shall be submitted to the City engineer for review and approval.  At the City 
Engineer’s discretion, plans may be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for review and comments. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Townsite Overlay: Within the Townsite Overlay District, where water main lines within 
the alley are less than six (6) feet deep, the developer shall install insulating material 
(blue board insulation or similar material) for each and every individual water service 
line and main line between and including the subject property and the nearest public 
street, as recommended by the City Engineer. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this project is not within the Townsite Overlay (TO) District.  

16.05.050: Drainage  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.050 Drainage: The developer shall provide drainage areas of adequate size and number to 

meet the approval of the street superintendent and the City engineer or his authorized 
representative. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.060: Utilities  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.060 Utilities: The developer shall construct each and every individual service connection 

and all necessary trunk lines, and/or conduits for those improvements, for natural gas, 
electricity, telephone, and cable television to the property line before placing base 
gravel for the street or alley. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.070: Parks, Green Space  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.070 Parks, Green Space: The developer shall improve all parks and green space areas as 

presented to and approved by the hearing examiner or commission and council. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.080: Installation to Specifications; Inspections  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.080 Installation to Specifications; Inspections: All improvements are to be installed under 

the specifications and inspection of the City engineer or his authorized representative.  
The minimum construction requirements shall meet City Standards or the Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) standards, whichever is the more stringent. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. . 

--50--



16.05.090: Completion; Inspections; Acceptance  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Installation of all infrastructure improvements must be completed by the developer 
and inspected and accepted by the City prior to signature of the plat by City 
representatives, or according to a phasing agreement.  A post-construction conference 
shall be requested by the developer and/or contractor and conducted with the 
developer and/or contractor, the City engineer, and appropriate City departments to 
determine a punch list of items for final acceptance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. The developer may, in lieu of actual construction, provide to the City security pursuant 
to Section 3.3.7, for all infrastructure improvements to be completed by developer 
after the final plat has been signed by City representatives. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A. Completion of all major infrastructure by the Developer is preferred over 
bonding. 

16.05.100: As Built Plans and Specifications  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.100 As Built Plans and Specifications: Prior to the acceptance by the City of any 
improvements installed by the developer, three (3) sets of “as-built plans and 
specifications” certified by the developer’s engineer shall be filed with the City 
engineer. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.08: Townhouses:  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.010 Plat Procedure:  The developer of the townhouse development shall submit with the 
preliminary plat application and all other information required herein a copy of the 
proposed party wall agreement and the proposed document(s) creating an association 
of owners of the proposed townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the 
control (including billing, where applicable) and maintenance of all common utilities, 
commonly held facilities, garages, parking and/or green spaces. Prior to final plat 
approval, the developer shall submit to the city a final copy of the party wall 
agreement and any other such documents and shall record the documents prior to or 
at the same time of the recordation of the plat, which plat shall reflect the recording 
instrument numbers thereupon. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.020 Garages:  All garages shall be designated on the preliminary and final plats and on all 
deeds as part of the particular townhouse units. Detached garages may be platted on 
separate sublots; provided, that the ownership of detached garages is appurtenant to 
specific townhouse units on the townhouse plat and that the detached garage(s) may 
not be sold and/or owned separate from any dwelling unit(s) within the townhouse 
development. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.030 Storage, Parking Areas:  Residential townhouse developments shall provide parking 
spaces according to the requirements of title 17, chapter 17.09 of this code. (Ord. 1191, 
2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.040  Construction Standards: All townhouse development construction shall be in 
accordance with the IBC, IRC and IFC. Each townhouse unit must have separate water, 

--51--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=17-17.09


sewer and utility services, which do not pass through another building or unit. (Ord. 
1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.050  General Applicability: All other provisions of this title and all applicable ordinances, 
rules and regulations of the city and all other governmental entities having jurisdiction 
shall be complied with by townhouse developments. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.060  Expiration: Townhouse developments which have received final plat approval shall 
have a period of three (3) calendar years from the date of final plat approval by the 
council to obtain a building permit. Developments which have not received a building 
permit shall be null and void and the plats associated therewith shall be vacated by the 
council. If a development is to be phased, construction of the second and succeeding 
phases shall be contingent upon completion of the preceding phase unless the 
requirement is waived by the council. Further, if construction on any townhouse 
development or phase of any development ceases or is not diligently pursued for a 
period of three (3) years without the prior consent of the council, that portion of the 
plat pertinent to the undeveloped portion of the development shall be vacated. (Ord. 
1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

 The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.070  Conversion: The conversion by subdivision of existing units into townhouses shall not 
be subject to section 16.04.110 of this title. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.080  Density: The maximum number of cottage townhouse units on any parcel shall be 
twelve (12), and not more than two (2) cottage townhouse developments shall be 
constructed adjacent to each other. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.11.010 Exceptions: Whenever the tract to be subdivided is, in the shape or size, or is 
surrounded by such development or unusual conditions that the strict application of 
the requirements contained herein would result in real difficulties and substantial 
hardships or injustices, the council may vary or modify such requirements by making 
findings for their decision so that the developer is allowed to develop his property in a 
reasonable manner, while ensuring that the public welfare and interests of the city and 
surrounding area  are protected and the general intent and spirit of this title are 
preserved. As used in this section, the phrase “real difficulties and substantial 
hardships or injustices” shall apply only to situations where strict application of the 
requirements of this title will deny to the developer the reasonable and beneficial use 
of the property in question, and not in situations where the developer establishes only 
that exceptions will allow more financially feasible or profitable subdivision. (Ord. 
1191, 2015).  

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

 
Summary and Suggested Conditions: The Council shall review the Preliminary Plat Application and 
continue the public hearing, approve, conditionally approve, or deny the Application.  
 
The following are suggested Conditions of Approval for this Application:   
 

--52--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=16.04.110


a) All conditions of the Planned Unit Development approval shall be met.  
b) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met.  
c) All City infrastructure requirements shall be met as outlined in Title 16, Chapter 16.05 of the 

Hailey Municipal Code. Detailed plans for all infrastructure to be installed or improved at or 
adjacent to the site shall be submitted for City of Hailey approval, and shall meet City Standards 
where required. Infrastructure to be completed at the Applicant’s sole expense include, but will 
not be limited to: 

i. Permits shall be obtained for installation of all drywells. 
ii. A Site Alteration Permit shall be obtained prior to any development occurring.  

iii. The Applicant shall install metal collars for the meter vault lids on any and all meter 
vaults located in asphalt or concrete.  

d) Preliminary Plat approval is subject to the Flood Hazard Development Permit, approved on 
February 26, 2020. 

e) All improvements and other requirements shall be completed and accepted, or surety provided 
pursuant to Subsections 16.03.030(I) and 16.05.090(B) of the Hailey Municipal Code, prior to 
recordation of the Final Plat. 

f) The Final Plat must be submitted within one (1) calendar year from the date of approval of the 
Preliminary Plat, unless otherwise allowed for within a phasing agreement.   

g) Any subdivision inspection fees due shall be paid prior to recording the Final Plat. 
h) Any application development fees shall be paid prior to recording the Final Plat. 
i) The Applicant shall submit an Erosion Control Plan prior to Final Plat.  
j) Prior to any future development in the SFHA, the property owner shall be required to obtain a 

Flood Hazard Development Permit from the City of Hailey for the proposed work.  
 

 
Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by 
Matt Watson, to be located at Parcel B2, Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision (located along 
Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho), finding that 
the application meets all City Standards, and that Conditions (a) through (j) are met.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt 
Watson, to be located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision (located along Shenandoah Drive, in 
Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho), finding that ________________ 
[Council should cite which standards are not met and provide the reason why each identified standard is 
not met]. 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing to __________________ [Council should specify a date]. 
 

--53--



Return to AIS 

--54--



SCALE: 1" = 50'

SWEETWATER P.U.D. TOWNHOUSES
BLOCK 2, PHASE 1

GALENA ENGINEERING, INC.
HAILEY, IDAHO

SHEET 1 OF 3
Job No. 7778

1. THE BOUNDARY INFORMATION SHOWN IS BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTS AND
THE RECORDED PLAT OF SWEETWATER P.U.D. SUBDIVISION, INSTRUMENT
NUMBER 576317, RECORDS OF BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO. ALL FOUND MONUMENTS
HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED. MISSING PROPERTY CORNERS HAVE BEEN RESET BY
PROPORTIONING RECORD DISTANCES. REFER TO THE PLAT NOTES, CONDITIONS,
COVENANTS, AND/OR RESTRICTIONS ON THE ORIGINAL PLAT OF SWEETWATER
P.U.D. SUBDIVISION, RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. 576317, THE ORIGINAL PLAT
OF WOODSIDE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT NO. 5 RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO.
150393, AND THE ORIGINAL PLAT OF WOODSIDE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT NO. 22
RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. 152517. THE ABOVE MENTIONED PLATS PER
RECORDS OF BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS USED IN THE
COURSE OF THIS SURVEY INCLUDE:

WOODSIDE SUBDIVISION #4, INSTRUMENT NO. 150392
WOODSIDE SUBDIVISION #5, INSTRUMENT NO. 150393
BALMORAL SUBDIVISION, INSTRUMENT NO. 439351
SOUTH HAILEY TOWNHOUSE, INSTRUMENT NO. 206882
LOTS 3B AND 4B, BALMORAL SUBDIVISION, INSTRUMENT NO. 457308

2. REFER TO THE MASTER DECLARATION OF CC&R'S FOR THE ORIGINAL PLAT OF
SWEETWATER P.U.D. SUBDIVISION RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. 576318,
RECORDS OF BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO AND AMENDMENTS THERETO.

3. LOT OWNERS, THEIR TENANTS, AND GUESTS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS PROPERTY
IS LOCATED NEAR THE FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT. PRESENT AND FUTURE
IMPACTS MAY BE ANNOYING AND INTERFERE WITH THE UNRESTRICTED USE AND
ENJOYMENT OF PROPERTY. THESE NOISE IMPACTS MAY CHANGE OVER TIME BY
VIRTUE OF GREATER NUMBERS OF AIRCRAFT, LOUDER AIRCRAFT, SEASONAL
VARIATIONS, AND TIME-OF-DAY VARIATIONS; THAT CHANGES TO AIRPORT,
AIRCRAFT, AND, AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL OPERATING PROCEDURES OR IN AIRPORT
LAYOUT COULD RESULT IN INCREASED NOISE IMPACTS; AND THAT THE USER'S
OWN PERSONAL PERCEPTIONS OF THE NOISE EXPOSURE COULD CHANGE AND
THAT HIS OR HER SENSITIVITY TO AIRCRAFT NOISE COULD INCREASE.

4. THE TOWNHOUSE SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TOWNHOUSE DECLARATION,
RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. __________, RECORDS OF BLAINE COUNTY,
IDAHO.

5. REFER TO THE SWEETWATER P.U.D. AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT
NO. 542953, RECORDS OF BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO AND AMENDMENTS THERETO.

6. THE EXISTING PHYSICAL BOUNDARIES OF THE COMMON UNIT WALL AS
ORIGINALLY CONSTRUCTED OR AS RECONSTRUCTED IN LIEU THEREOF SHALL BE
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO BE ITS BOUNDARIES RATHER THAN THE METES
AND BOUNDS EXPRESSED OR DEPICTED IN THE DECLARATION, PLATS OR DEEDS,
REGARDLESS OF SETTLING OR LATERAL MOVEMENT OF BUILDING AND
REGARDLESS OF MINOR VARIANCES BETWEEN THE ACTUAL LOCATION AND
BOUNDARIES SHOWN.

7. A MUTUAL RECIPROCAL EASEMENT FOR SIDEWALKS AND UTILITIES IS GRANTED
WITHIN SUBLOTS 17A - 21D TO BENEFIT THE SWEETWATER P.U.D. HOMEOWNERS.

8. THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS AFFECTED BY ADDITIONAL EXCEPTIONS AS
PROVIDED IN A TITLE REPORT BY AMERITITLE WITH THE COMMITMENT DATE OF
10/05/06 @ 8:00am AND ORDER NO. 56933:

E. PERPETUAL EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A FREE AND
UNOBSTRUCTED PASSAGE OF AIRCRAFT IN, THROUGH, AND ACROSS THE
AIRSPACE ABOVE THE ELEVATION 6,115 FEET MEAN SEA LEVEL DATUM,
EXECUTED BY SAWTOOTH TITLE COMPANY, INC., AN IDAHO CORPORATION,
TRUSTEE, TO CITY OF HAILEY, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, RECORDED JULY 17,
1973, AS INSTRUMENT NO. 150169.

I. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JANUARY 27, 2005, AS INSTRUMENT
NO. 515668.

9. THE 100-YR FLOODPLAIN AREA DESIGNATED ON THIS MAP IS CONSIDERED
REASONABLE FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES. HOWEVER, GALENA ENGINEERING,
INC. NEITHER REPRESENTS, GUARANTIES, WARRANTS, NOR IMPLIES THAT AREAS
OUTSIDE OF THE DESIGNATED FLOODPLAIN AREA ARE SAFE AND FREE FROM
FLOODS OR FLOOD DANGER.

FLOOD INFORMATION IS BASED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY FOR CITY OF
HAILEY, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, COMMUNITY NUMBER 16013C, PANEL NO'S 0668 E
AND 0856 E, NOVEMBER 26, 2010. VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD88.

10. ZONING IS LIMITED BUSINESS (LB).

11.SNOW STORAGE EASEMENTS WITHIN SUBLOTS 17A THRU 21D TO BENEFIT THE
SWEETWATER P.U.D. HOMEOWNERS ARE GRANTED AS SHOWN HEREON.

PRELIMINARY

*SEE PAGE 2 FOR LEGEND AND CURVE TABLE

SCALE IN FEET

10002550 50 150

HOPPER WAY

--55--



SCALE: 1" = 30'

SWEETWATER P.U.D. TOWNHOUSES
BLOCK 2, PHASE 1

GALENA ENGINEERING, INC.
HAILEY, IDAHO

SHEET 2 OF 3
Job No. 7778

PRELIMINARY

SCALE IN FEET

6001530 30 90

--56--



Return to AIS 

--57--



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 

On March 30, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Plat Application by Kilgore 
Properties, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, to be located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision 
(located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, 
Idaho), where Phase 1 of Block 2 is subdivided into 14  sublots, consisting of seven (7) live-work units, 
one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex townhomes for a total of 23 residential units. . 
The total development comprises of 6.5 acres. This project is located with the Limited Business (LB) 
Zoning District. This property is subject to a P.U.D. Development Agreement dated January 10, 2005 and 
Amendments to the Development Agreement dated December 12, 2009, December 20, 2010 and 
November 6, 2012. Design Review was approved for this project on December 16, 2019. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission enters these Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. 

FINDINGS OF FACT

Notice:  
Notice for the public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on February 26, 2020 and 
mailed to property owners and public agencies on February 26, 2020. This project was continued on 
record at the March 16, 2020 public hearing to March 30, 2020. The project was approved at the March 
30, 2020 Public Hearing.  

Background: 
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Application by Sweetwater Communities, LLC, represented by Matt 
Watson, located at Block 2, Sweetwater P.U.D. Subdivision, where Phase I of Block 2 is subdivided into 
14 sublots consisting of seven (7) live-work units, one (1), ten-unit condominium and two (2), three-plex 
townhomes for a total of 23 residential units. This project is located along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 
15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho, within the Limited Business (LB) Zoning 
District. All driveways are oriented toward internal alleys (Heartland Way, Hopper way and Herder’s 
Way); all onsite parking is located below grade or within the proposed structures.  

A 69,696 square foot park is existing and meets the park requirements of the Hailey Municipal Code. The 
project is located in the Limited Business (LB) Zone District.  

Procedural History: 
The Application was submitted on January 8, 2020 and certified complete on January 17, 2020. public 
hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission was planned for March 16, 2020, in the meeting 
room of Hailey City Hall. This project was continued on record at the March 16, 2020 public hearing to 
March 30, 2020.  

As noted, this property is subject to a P.U.D. Development Agreement dated January 10, 2005 and 
Amendments to the Development Agreement dated December 12, 2009, December 20, 2010 and 
November 6, 2012. Design Review for the project (Phase I through IV) was approved December 16, 
2019. 

Standards of Evaluation for a Subdivision 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

--58--



Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.06.050 Complete Application  

☒ ☐ ☐ Department 
Comments  

Engineering: No comments at this time.   

 Life/Safety: No comments at this time.  
 Water and Sewer: The Water and Wastewater Divisions, and Applicant Team have 

been working to resolve and/or solidify design details prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit. The items noted below have either been resolved and/or made 
Conditions of Approval (the Applicant’s response to said issues are noted in bold 
and italics): 
Water Division:  

- The plans do not show where the meter vaults will be set or show that 
there will be meter vaults going in. It appears a fire system will be going 
into Building #18. No isolation valve on the water main has been 
shown. A second line is going into the same building. Is this a separate 
domestic line? Please clarify. Water meter cans are now shown on 
water service lines, as well as Plan and Profile Sheets (Sheet C-300). 
The 4” water service for the condominium building is noted as typical, 
with valve shown on service. All 2” water services for condominium 
buildings are noted as typical.  

Wastewater Division:  
- Are sewer services connected to the center of each unit? Sewer laterals 

for townhouse units have been moved to the center of each unit.  
- There was no indication that the mainline going into the existing 

manhole SSMH 103 would need to be core drilled at a different angle 
than it currently exists. A note has been added to remove existing 
sewer main stub (Sheet C-300). A new main to be installed at 
proposed angle.  

- Any and all meter vaults that are located in asphalt or concrete shall 
have metal collars on them for the meter vault lids. This has been made 
a Condition of Approval.  

 
To ensure all items have been resolved, a final review and approval will be 
conducted prior to issuance of a Building Permit.    

 Building: No comments at this time. 
 Streets: The Streets Division and Applicant Team have been working to resolve 

and/or solidify design details prior to issuance of a Building Permit. The items 
noted below have either been resolved and/or made Conditions of Approval (the 
Applicant’s response to said issues are noted in bold and italics): 

- Continental crosswalks shall be installed instead of 12” lines. The 
crosswalk on Shenandoah Drive in Phase I has been changed and 
noted as a continental pattern (Sheet C-600). Future crosswalk in 
Phase II on Shenandoah Drive and Maple Leaf Drive have also been 
updated to be continental pattern.  

- The stop bar located on Countryside Boulevard in the east bound lane 
seems to be out of place. Please remedy. This stop bar has been 
removed (Sheet C-600).  

- The Signage and Striping Plan doesn’t call out all of the signs along 
Shenandoah Drive. There need to be accessible parking signs adjacent 

--59--



to the accessible on-street parking. Accessible parking signage has 
been shown by accessible parking stall(s) (Sheet C-600).  

- Will there be no parking fire lane at the entrances into the project? “No 
Parking – Fire Lane” Signage, noted as typical on entrances (Sheet C-
600).  

- Crosswalk Signs shall be provided at the Shenandoah Drive and Maple 
Leaf crosswalks on Shenandoah Drive. These signs have been added in 
our base files’ signage will be installed with crosswalks in Phase II of 
constructions.  

- An R7-203a Sign pertaining to snow routes shall be installed. “Snow 
Route – No Parking” signs have been shown on the Signage and 
Striping Plan (Sheet C-600).  

To ensure all items have been resolved, a final review and approval will be 
conducted prior to issuance of a Building Permit.    

 Landscaping/Parks: No comments at this time. 
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.010 

Development 
Standards 

Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be 
subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title 
and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in 
accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Staff 
Comments 

Please refer to the specific standards as noted herein. 

 16.04.020: Streets: 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   16.04.020 Streets: Streets shall be provided in all subdivisions where necessary to provide access 

and shall meet all standards below. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Development Standards: All streets in the subdivision must be platted and developed 
with a width, alignment, and improvements such that the street is adequate to safely 
accommodate existing and anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic and meets City 
standards.  Streets shall be aligned in such a manner as to provide through, safe and 
efficient access from and to adjacent developments and properties and shall provide 
for the integration of the proposed streets with the existing pattern. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Cul-De-Sacs; Dead-End Streets: Cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall be allowed only if 
connectivity is not possible due to surrounding topography or existing platted 
development.  Where allowed, such cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall comply with 
all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and ordinances.  Street 
rights-of-way extended into un-platted areas shall not be considered dead end streets. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets or alleys are proposed.   

☒ ☐ ☐ C. Access: More than one access may be required based on the potential for impairment 
of a single access by vehicle congestion, terrain, climatic conditions or other factors 
that could limit access. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. Design: Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles 
and no street shall intersect any other street at less than eighty (80) degrees.  Where 
possible, four-way intersections shall be used.  A recommended distance of 500 feet, 
with a maximum of 750 feet, measured from the center line, shall separate any 
intersection.  Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to speed 
humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, meanderings, 

--60--



chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street design.  Alternate 
traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation by the City 
Engineer.  Three-way intersections shall only be permitted where most appropriate or 
where no other configuration is possible.  A minimum distance of 150 feet, measured 
from the center line, shall separate any 2 three-way intersections.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. Centerlines: Street centerlines which deflect more than five (5) degrees shall be 
connected by a curve.  The radius of the curve for the center line shall not be more 
than 500 feet for an arterial street, 166 feet for a collector street and 89 feet for a 
residential street. Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to 
speed humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, 
meanderings, chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street 
design. Alternate traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation 
by the City Engineer.   

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as Shenandoah Drive and Maple Leaf Drive are existing. Windmill Way, a 
26’-wide private alley, is proposed. No traffic calming measures are proposed at 
this time.  

☒ ☐ ☐ F. Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The 
minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be 
as specified in City Standards for the type of street. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ G.  
 
 

Roadways: Roadway, for the purpose of this section, shall be defined as the area of 
asphalt from curb face to curb face or edge to edge.  Roadway includes areas for 
vehicle travel and may include parallel or angle in parking areas. The width of 
roadways shall be in accordance with the adopted City Standards for road construction. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. Road Grades: Road Grades shall be at least two percent (2%) and shall not generally 
exceed six percent (6%).  Grade may exceed 6%, where necessary, by 1% (total 7%) for 
no more than 300 feet or 2% (total 8%) for no more than 150 feet. No excess grade 
shall be located within 200 feet of any other excess grade nor there any horizontal 
deflection in the roadway greater than 30 degrees within 300 feet of where the excess 
grade decreases to a 2% slope.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ I.  Runoff: The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate 
size and number to contain any runoff within the streets in the subdivision in 
conformance with the applicable Federal, State and local regulations. The developer 
shall provide copies of state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells). Drainage 
plans shall be reviewed by City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer.  
Developer shall provide a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm water 
Discharge from Construction Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than 
one acre. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ J. Signage: The developer shall provide and install all street and traffic control signs in 
accordance with City Standards. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ K. Dedication; Names: All streets and alleys within any subdivision shall be dedicated for 
public use, except as provided herein.  New street names (public and private) shall not 
be the same or similar to any other street names used in Blaine County. 

--61--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   L. Private Streets:  

☐ ☐ ☒ L. 1.  Private streets may be allowed (a) to serve a maximum of five (5) residential dwelling 
units, (b) within Planned Unit Developments, or (c) within commercial developments in 
the Business, Limited Business, Neighborhood Business, Light Industrial, Technological 
Industry, and Service Commercial Industrial districts.  Private streets are allowed at the 
sole discretion of the Council, except that no Arterial or Major Street, or Collector or 
Secondary Street may be private.  Private streets shall have a minimum total width of 36 
feet, shall be constructed to all other applicable City Standards including paving, and 
shall be maintained by an owner’s association. 
 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as Heartland Way, Hopper Way and Herder’s Way are private alleys and 
will be maintained by the homeowner’s association. The private alleys meet the 
minimum total width of 26’-wide and shall be constructed to meet City 
Standards.  

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 2.  Private streets, wherever possible, shall provide interconnection with other public 
streets and private streets.  

   Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 3.  The area designated for private streets shall be platted as a separate parcel according to 
subsection 16.04.060C below. The plat shall clearly indicate that the parcel is unbuildable 
except for public vehicular and public pedestrian access and ingress/egress, utilities or 
as otherwise specified on the plat.   

   Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 4.  Private street names shall not end with the word “Road”, “Boulevard”, “Avenue”, 
“Drive” or “Street”.  Private streets serving five (5) or fewer dwelling units shall not be 
named. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 5.  Private streets shall have adequate and unencumbered 10-foot wide snow storage 
easements on both sides of the street, or an accessible dedicated snow storage 
easement representing not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the improved area of 
the private street.  Private street snow storage easements shall not be combined with, 
or encumber, required on-site snow storage areas. 

    Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ L. 6. Subdivisions with private streets shall provide two (2) additional parking spaces per 
dwelling unit for guest and/or overflow parking.  These spaces may be located (a) within 
the residential lot (e.g., between the garage and the roadway), (b) as parallel spaces 
within the street parcel or easement adjacent to the travel lanes, (c) in a designated 
guest parking area, or (d) as a combination thereof.  Guest/overflow parking spaces are 
in addition to the minimum number of parking spaces required pursuant to chapter 
17.09 of this code. The dimension of guest/overflow parking spaces shall be no less than 
ten feet by twenty feet (10’x20’) if angle parking, or ten feet by twenty-four feet (10’x24’) 
if parallel.  Guest overflow parking spaces shall be improved with asphalt, gravel, pavers, 
grass block, or another all-weather dustless surface.  No part of any required 
guest/overflow parking spaces shall be utilized for snow storage. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   M.  Driveways:  

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 1.  Driveways may provide access to not more than two (2) residential dwelling units.  
Where a parcel to be subdivided will have one lot fronting on a street, not more than 

--62--



one additional single-family lot accessed by a driveway may be created in the rear of the 
parcel.  In such a subdivision, where feasible (e.g., no driveway already exists), both lots 
shall share access via a single driveway.  Driveways shall not be named.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 2.  Driveways shall be constructed with an all-weather surface and shall have the following 
minimum roadway widths: 

a) Accessing one residential unit: twelve feet (12’) 
b) Accessing two residential units: sixteen feet (16’)  

No portion of the required fire lane width of any driveway may be utilized for parking, 
above ground utility structures, dumpsters or other service areas, snow storage or any 
other obstructions.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ M. 3.  Driveways longer than 150 feet must have a turnaround area approved by the Fire 
Department.  Fire lane signage must be provided as approved by the Fire Department. 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no driveways exceed 150’. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 4. Driveways accessing more than one residential dwelling unit shall be maintained by an 
owner’s association, or in accordance with a plat note.   

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 5. The area designated for a driveway serving more than one dwelling unit shall be 
platted as a separate unbuildable parcel, or as a dedicated driveway easement.  
Easements and parcels shall clearly indicate the beneficiary of the easement or parcel 
and that the property is unbuildable except for ingress/egress, utilities or as otherwise 
specified on the plat.  A building envelope may be required in order to provide for 
adequate building setback. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ M. 6. No driveway shall interfere with maintenance of existing infrastructure and shall be 
located to have the least adverse impact on residential dwelling units, existing or to be 
constructed, on the lot the easement encumbers and on adjacent lots. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ N.  Parking Access Lane: A parking access lane shall not be considered a street but shall 
comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and 
ordinances. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ O. Fire Lanes: Required fire lanes, whether in private streets, driveways or parking access 
lanes, shall comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes 
and ordinances. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.030: Sidewalks and Drainage Improvements  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Sidewalks and drainage improvements are required in all zoning districts and shall be 
located and constructed according to applicable City standards, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. The length of sidewalks and drainage improvements constructed shall be equal to the 
length of the subject property line(s) adjacent to any public street or private street. 

--63--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C. New sidewalks shall be planned to provide pedestrian connections to any existing and 
future sidewalks adjacent to the site.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. Sites located adjacent to a public street or private street that are not currently through 
streets, regardless whether the street may provide a connection to future streets, shall 
provide sidewalks to facilitate future pedestrian connections.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. The requirement for sidewalk and drainage improvements are not required for any lot 
line adjustment.  

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

16.04.040: Alleys and Easements 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   A.  Alleys:  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 1. Alleys shall be provided in all Business District and Limited Business District 
developments where feasible. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.    

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. The minimum width of an alley shall be twenty-six (26’) feet.  
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. All alleys shall be dedicated to the public or provide for public access. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 4. All infrastructures to be installed underground shall, where possible, be 
installed in the alleys platted. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 5. Alleys in commercial areas shall be improved with drainage as appropriate and which 
the design meets the approval of the City Engineer.  The Developer shall provide storm 
sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and number to contain any runoff 
within the streets in the subdivision upon the property in conformance with the latest 
applicable Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of 
state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed 
by City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 6. Dead-end alleys shall not be allowed. 
Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no dead-end alleys are proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 7. Where alleys are not provided, easements of not less than ten (10) feet in width may 
be required on each side of all rear and/or side lot lines (total width = 20 feet) where 
necessary for wires, conduits, storm or sanitary sewers, gas and water lines.  
Easements of greater width may be required along lines, across lots, or along 
boundaries, where necessary for surface drainage or for the extension of utilities. 

Staff 
Comments  

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

--64--



☒ ☐ ☐ B. Easements.  Easements, defined as the use of land not having all the rights of 
ownership and limited to the purposes designated on the plat, shall be placed on the 
plat as appropriate.  Plats shall show the entity to which the easement has been 
granted.  Easements shall be provided for the following purposes: 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. To provide access through or to any property for the purpose of providing utilities, 
emergency services, public access, private access, recreation, deliveries or such other 
purpose.  Any subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a 20-foot 
wide fisherman’s access easement, measured from the Mean High-Water Mark, which 
shall provide for non-motorized public access.  Additionally, in appropriate areas, an 
easement providing non-motorized public access through the subdivision to the river 
shall be required as a sportsman’s access. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this site does not border the Big Wood River.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. To provide protection from or buffering for any natural resource, riparian area, 
hazardous area, or other limitation or amenity on, under, or over the land.  Any 
subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a one hundred (100) foot 
wide riparian setback easement, measured from the Mean High-Water Mark, upon 
which no permanent structure shall be built, in order to protect the natural vegetation 
and wildlife along the river bank and to protect structures from damage or loss due to 
river bank erosion. A twenty-five (25) foot wide riparian setback easement shall be 
dedicated adjacent to tributaries of the Big Wood River.  Removal and maintenance of 
live or dead vegetation within the riparian setback easement is controlled by the 
applicable bulk requirement of the Flood Hazard Overlay District.  The riparian setback 
easement shall be fenced off during any construction on the property. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. To provide for the storage of snow, drainage areas or the conduct of irrigation waters.  
Snow storage areas shall be not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of parking, 
sidewalk and other circulation areas.  No dimension of any snow storage area may be 
less than 10 feet.  All snow storage areas shall be accessible and shall not be located 
over any above ground utilities, such as transformers. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

16.04.050: Blocks 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.04.050 Blocks: The length, width and shape of blocks shall be determined with due regard to 
adequate building sites suitable to the special needs of the type of use contemplated, 
the zoning requirements as to lot size and dimensions, the need for convenient access 
and safe circulation and the limitations and opportunities of topography. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no blocks are proposed. 

16.04.060: Lots 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.060 Lots: All lots shown on the subdivision plat must conform to the minimum standards 
for lots in the District in which the subdivision is planned. The City will generally not 
approve single-family residential lots larger than one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 square 
feet).  In the event a single-family residential lot greater than one-half (1/2) acre is 
platted, irrigation shall be restricted to not more than one-half (1/2) acre, pursuant to 

--65--



Idaho Code §42-111, and such restriction shall be included as a plat note.  District 
regulations are found in the Zoning Chapter. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. If lots are more than double the minimum size required for the zoning district, the 
Developer may be required to arrange lots in anticipation of future re-subdivision and 
provide for future streets where necessary to serve potential lots, unless the plat 
restricts further subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Double frontage lots shall be prohibited except where unusual topography, a more 
integrated street plan, or other conditions make it undesirable to meet this 
requirement. Double frontage lots are those created by either public or private streets, 
but not by driveways or alleys. Subdivisions providing a platted parcel of 25 feet or 
more between any street right-of-way and any single row of lots shall not be 
considered to have platted double frontage lots.  The 25-foot wide parcel provided 
must be landscaped to provide a buffer between the street and the lot(s). 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no double frontage lots are proposed.  

☐ ☐ ☒ C. No unbuildable lots shall be platted.  Platted areas that are not buildable shall be noted 
as such and designated as “parcels” on the plat.  Green Space shall be clearly 
designated as such on the plat. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. A single flag lot may be permitted at the sole discretion of the Hearing Examiner or 
Commission and Council, in which the “flagpole” projection is serving as a driveway as 
provided herein, providing connection to and frontage on a public or a private street.   
Once established, a flag lot may not be further subdivided, but a lot line adjustment of 
a flag lot is not considered a further subdivision. The “flagpole” portion of the lot shall 
be included in lot area but shall not be considered in determining minimum lot width.  
The “flagpole” shall be of adequate width to accommodate a driveway as required by 
this ordinance, fire and other applicable codes.  Flag lots within the Townsite Overlay 
District are not allowed, except where parcels do not have street access, such as 
parcels adjacent to the ITD right-of-way. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no flag lots are proposed.  

☒ ☐ ☐ E. All lots shall have frontage on a public or private street.  No frontage width shall be less 
than the required width of a driveway as provided under Sections 4.1.11.1 and 4.5.4 of 
this Ordinance.  Townhouse Sub-Lots are excluded from this requirement; provided, 
however, that Townhouse Developments shall have frontage on a street. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ F. In the Townsite Overlay District, original Townsite lots shall be subdivided such that 
the new platted lots are oriented the same as the original lots, i.e. lots shall be 
subdivided in such a way as to maintain frontage on both the street and alley.  
Exceptions may be made for corner properties with historic structures. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this project is not located within the Townsite Overlay (TO) Zone District.  

16.04.070: Orderly Development  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Phasing Required: Development of subdivisions shall be phased to avoid the extension 
of City services, roads and utilities through undeveloped land. 

--66--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Agreement: Developers requesting phased subdivisions shall enter into a phasing 
agreement with the City.  Any phasing agreement shall be approved and executed by 
the Council and the Developer on or before the preliminary plat approval by the 
Council. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   

☐ ☐ ☒ C. Mitigation of Negative Effects: No subdivision shall be approved which affects the 
ability of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver services 
without compromising quality of service delivery to current residents or imposing 
substantial additional public costs upon current residents, unless the Developer 
provides for the mitigation of the effects of subdivision. Such mitigation may include, 
but is not limited to the following: 

a) Provision of on-site or off-site street or intersection improvements. 
b) Provision of other off-site improvements. 
c) Dedications and/or public improvements on property frontages. 
d) Dedication or provision of parks or green space. 
e) Provision of public service facilities. 
f) Construction of flood control canals or devices. 
g) Provisions for ongoing maintenance. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ D.  When the developer of contiguous parcels proposes to subdivide any portion of the 
contiguous parcels, an area development plan shall be submitted and approved. The 
Commission and Council shall evaluate the following basic site criteria and make 
appropriate findings of fact: 

1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system 
and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. 

2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle 
ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green 
space, public lands, or other destinations. 

3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective 
layout feasible. 

4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in 
the most effective layout feasible. 

5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels. 
6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels. 
7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural 

resource areas. 
The commission and council may require that any or all contiguous parcels be included 
in the subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

16.04.080: Perimeter Walls, Gates and Berms  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.04.080 The City of Hailey shall not approve any residential subdivision application that 
includes any type of perimeter wall or gate that restricts access to the subdivision.  This 
regulation does not prohibit fences on or around individual lots.  The City shall also not 
allow any perimeter landscape berm more than 3’ higher than the previously existing 
(original) grade. 

--67--



Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as no perimeter walls, gates or landscape berms are proposed. Retaining 
walls are proposed to be located at the western entrance to the townhomes and 
will be constructed of materials that have been utilized elsewhere within the 
Sweetwater Development. Said walls will be constructed out of the same block 
materials used in previous phases. 

16.04.090: Cuts, Fills, Grading and Drainage  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Plans Required: Proposed subdivisions shall be carefully planned to be compatible with 
natural topography, soil conditions, geology and hydrology of the site, as well as to 
minimize cuts; fills, alterations of topography, streams, drainage channels; and 
disruption of soils or vegetation.  Fill within the floodplain shall comply with the 
requirements of the Flood Hazard Overlay District of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. A preliminary soil report prepared by a qualified engineer may be required by the 
Hearing Examiner or Commission and/or Council as part of the preliminary plat 
application. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the City Engineer has not required a Soils Report from the Applicant. A 
Soils Report, prepared by Butler and Associates, was submitted in 2006, and is 
available for review, if so desired.  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. A preliminary grading plan prepared by a civil engineer may be required by the Hearing 
Examiner or Commission and/or the Council as part of the preliminary plat application, 
to contain the following information: 

a) Proposed contours at a maximum of two (2) foot contour intervals; 
b) Cut and fill banks in pad elevations; 
c) Drainage patterns; 
d) Areas where trees and/or natural vegetation will be preserved; 
e) Location of all street and utility improvements including driveways to 

building envelopes; and   
f) Any other information which may reasonably be required by the 

Administrator, Hearing Examiner, Commission and/or Council. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.. 

   B. Design Standards: The proposed subdivision shall conform to the following design 
standards:  

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 1.  Grading shall be designed to blend with natural land forms and to minimize the 
necessity of padding or terracing of building sites, excavation for foundations, and 
minimize the necessity of cuts and fills for streets and driveways. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Areas within a subdivision which are not well suited for development because of 
existing soil conditions, steepness of slope, geology or hydrology shall be allocated for 
Green Space for the benefit of future property owners within the subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. Where existing soils and vegetation are disrupted by subdivision development, 
provision shall be made by the Developer for Revegetation of disturbed areas with 
perennial vegetation sufficient to stabilize the soil upon completion of the 
construction, including temporary irrigation for a sufficient period to establish 
perennial vegetation.  Until such time as the vegetation has been installed and 
established, the Developer shall maintain and protect all disturbed surfaces from 
erosion. 

--68--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 4. Where cuts, fills or other excavation are necessary, the following development 
standards shall apply: 

a) Fill areas for structures or roads shall be prepared by removing all organic 
material detrimental to proper compaction for soil stability. 

b) Fill for structures or roads shall be compacted to at least 95 percent of 
maximum density as determined by American Association State Highway 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and American Society of Testing & 
Materials (ASTM). 

c) Cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontals to one vertical.  
Subsurface drainage shall be provided as necessary for stability. 

d) Fill slopes shall be no steeper than three horizontals to one vertical.  Neither 
cut nor fill slopes shall be located on natural slopes of three to one or 
steeper, or where fill slope toes out within twelve (12) feet horizontally of the 
top of existing or planned cut slope. 

e) Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes shall be set back from structures and 
property lines as necessary to accommodate drainage features and drainage 
structures. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  
 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 5. The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and 
number to contain the runoff upon the property in conformance with the applicable 
Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of state 
permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed by 
planning staff and shall meet the approval of the City engineer. Developer shall provide 
a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm-water Discharge from Construction 
Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than one acre. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.100: Overlay Districts  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 
   A. Flood Hazard Overlay District: 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivision located within the Flood Hazard Overlay District 
shall comply with all provisions of Section 4.10 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met..  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2.  Subdivisions located partially in the Flood Hazard Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Flood Hazard Overlay District to the extent possible. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met..  

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. Any platted lots adjacent to the Big Wood River or its tributaries shall have designated 
building envelopes. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located adjacent to the Big Wood River 
or its tributaries.  

☒ ☐ ☐ B. Hillside Overlay District: 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivisions located within the Hillside Overlay District shall 
comply with all provisions of Section 4.14, of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located within the Hillside Overlay 
District.  

--69--



☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Subdivisions located partially in the Hillside Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Hillside Overlay District. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as the proposed subdivision is not located within the Hillside Overlay 
District. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. All approved subdivisions shall contain a condition that a Site Alteration Permit is 
required before any development occurs. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.04.110: Parks, Pathways and Other Green Spaces 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Parks and Pathways: Unless otherwise provided, every subdivision shall set aside a 
Park and/or Pathway(s) in accordance with standards set forth herein. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

                  A. 1. Parks: 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. a. The developer of any subdivision, or any part thereof, consisting of three (3) or more 
residential lots, including residential townhouse sub-lots and residential condominium 
units, without regard to the number of phases within the subdivision, shall set aside or 
acquire land area within, adjacent to or in the general vicinity of the subdivision for 
Parks.  Parks shall be developed within the City of Hailey and set aside in accordance 
with the following formula: 
  
P = x multiplied by .0277 
 
“P” is the Parks contribution in acres 
 
“x” is the number of single-family lots, residential townhouse sub-lots or residential 
condominium units contained within the plat. Where multi-family lots are being 
platted with no fixed number of units, “x” is maximum number of residential lots, sub-
lots, and units possible within the subdivision based on current zoning regulations. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.1.b In the event the subdivision is located in the Business (B), Limited Business (LB), 
Neighborhood Business (NB), or Transitional (TN) zoning districts, the area required for 
a Park shall be reduced by 75%, but in no event shall the area required for a 
Park/Cultural Space exceed 17.5% of the area of the lot(s) being developed.  

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. Pathways: The developer of any subdivision, or any part thereof, shall provide 
pathways for all trails and paths identified in the master plan that are located on the 
property to be subdivided or on City property adjacent to the property to be 
subdivided, and sidewalks required by this ordinance.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.   
 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Multiple Ownership:  Where a parcel of land is owned or otherwise controlled, in any 
manner, directly or indirectly: 

a) By the same individual(s) or entity(ies), including but not limited to 
corporation(s), partnership(s), limited liability company(ies) or trust(s), or 

b) By different individuals or entities, including but not limited to corporations, 
partnerships, limited liability companies or trusts where a) such individual(s) 
or entity(ies) have a controlling ownership or contractual right with the other 
individual(s) or entity(ies), or b) the same individual(s) or entity(ies) act in any 

--70--



manner as an employee, owner, partner, agent, stockholder, director, 
member, officer or trustee of the entity(ies),  

c) Multiple subdivisions of the parcel that cumulatively result in three (3) or 
more residential lots, townhouse sub-lots or condominium units, are subject 
to the provisions of this ordinance, and shall provide the required 
improvements subject to the required standards at or before the platting or 
development of the lots, sub-lots or units. 

d) Parks and Lands Board: The parks and lands board shall review and make a 
recommendation to the hearing examiner or commission and council 
regarding each application subject to the provisions of Section 4.10 of this 
ordinance. Such recommendation will be based on compliance with the 
master plan and provisions of this ordinance. 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ C.  Parks and Lands Board: The parks and lands board shall review and make a 
recommendation to the hearing examiner or commission and council regarding each 
application subject to the provisions of Section 4.10 of this ordinance. Such 
recommendation will be based on compliance with the master plan and provisions of 
this ordinance. 

   Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   D. Minimum Requirements: 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. 1. Private Green Space: Use and maintenance of any privately-owned green space shall be 
controlled by recorded covenants or restrictions which run with the land in favor of the 
future owners of the property within the tract and which cannot be modified without 
the consent of the council. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. 2. Neighborhood Park: A neighborhood park shall include finished grading and ground 
cover, large grassy areas, trees and shrubs, sheltered picnic table(s), trash container(s), 
dog station(s), bike racks, park bench(es), parking as required by ordinance, and two or 
more of the following: play structure, restrooms, an athletic field, trails, hard surface 
multiple use court (tennis or basketball courts), or gardens that demonstrate 
conservation principles.  Neighborhood Parks shall provide an average of 15 trees per 
acre, of which at least 15% shall be of 4" caliper or greater.  A maximum of 20% of any 
single tree species may be used.  Landscaping and irrigation shall integrate water 
conservation.  A neighborhood park shall be deeded to the City upon completion, 
unless otherwise agreed upon by the developer and City.   

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☒ D. 3. Mini Park:  A mini park shall include finished grading and ground cover, trees and 
shrubs, picnic table(s), trash container(s), dog station(s), bike racks and park bench(es).  
All mini parks shall provide an average of 15 trees per acre, of which at least 15% shall 
be of 4" caliper or greater. A maximum of 20% of any single tree species may be used.  
Landscaping and irrigation shall integrate water conservation. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ D. 4. Park/Cultural Space:  A park/cultural space shall include benches, planters, trees, 
public art, water features and other elements that would create a gathering place.  
Connective elements, such as parkways or enhanced sidewalks may also qualify where 
such elements connect two or more parks or park/cultural spaces. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

--71--



☒ ☐ ☐ D. 5. Pathway:  Pathways shall have a minimum twenty-foot (20’) right-of-way width and 
shall be paved or improved as recommended by the Parks and Lands Board.  
Construction of Pathways shall be undertaken at the same time as other public 
improvements are installed within the development, unless the Council otherwise 
allows when deemed beneficial for the project. The Developer shall be entitled to 
receive a Park dedication credit only if the Developer completes and constructs a 
Pathway identified in the Master Plan or completes and constructs a Pathway not 
identified in the Master Plan where the Pathway connects to existing or proposed trails 
identified in the Master Plan.  The City may permit easements to be granted by 
Developers for Pathways identified in the Master Plan, thereby allowing the Developer 
to include the land area in the determination of setbacks and building density on the 
site, but in such cases, a Park dedication credit will not be given.  A Developer is 
entitled to receive a credit against any area required for a Park for every square foot of 
qualified dedicated Pathway right-of-way. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. Specific Park Standards: All Parks shall meet the following criteria for development, 
location and size (unless unusual conditions exist that prohibit meeting one or more of 
the criteria): 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by Subsection D of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 2. Shall provide safe and convenient access, including ADA standards. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 3. Shall not be gated so as to restrict access and shall not be configured in such a manner 
that will create a perception of intruding on private space.  If a Park is privately owned 
and maintained, the use of the park shall not be exclusive to the homeowners, 
residents or employees of the development. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. 4. Shall be configured in size, shape, topography and improvements to be functional for 
the intended users.  To be eligible for Park dedication, the land must, at a minimum, be 
located on slopes less than 25 degrees, and outside of drain ways, floodways and 
wetland areas.  Mini Parks shall not be occupied by non-recreational buildings and shall 
be available for the use of all the residents or employees of the proposed subdivision. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ E. 5. Shall not create undue negative impact on adjacent properties and shall be buffered 
from conflicting land uses. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. 6. Shall require low maintenance or provide for maintenance or maintenance 
endowment. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ F. Specific Pathway Standards:  All Pathways shall meet the following criteria for 
development, location and size (unless unusual conditions exist that prohibit meeting 
one or more of the criteria): 

☒ ☐ ☐ F. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by Subsection D of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

--72--



☒ ☐ ☐ F. 2. Shall be connected in a useful manner to other Parks, Pathways, Green Space and 
recreation and community assets.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   G. Specific Green Space Standards:  If green space is required or offered as part of a 
subdivision, townhouse or condominium development, all green space shall meet the 
following criteria for development, location and size (unless unusual conditions exist 
that prohibit meeting one or more of the criteria): 

☒  ☐ ☐ G. 1. Shall meet the minimum applicable requirements required by section 4.10.04 of this 
section.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☐ ☐ ☒ G. 2. Public and private green spaces on the same property or adjacent properties shall be 
complementary to one another.  Green space within proposed developments shall be 
designed to be contiguous and interconnecting with any adjacent Green Space (both 
existing and potential future space). 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as public and private green spaces on the same property or adjacent 
properties are not proposed and/or existing.   

☒ ☐ ☐ G. 3. The use of the private green space shall be restricted to Parks, Pathways, trails or other 
recreational purposes, unless otherwise allowed by the City. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ G. 4. The private ownership and maintenance of green space shall be adequately provided 
for by written agreement. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

   H.  In-Lieu Contributions: 

☐ ☐ ☒ H. 1. After receiving a recommendation by the Parks and Lands Board, the Council may at 
their discretion approve and accept voluntary cash contributions in lieu of Park land 
dedication and Park improvements.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 2. The voluntary cash contributions in lieu of Park land shall be equivalent to the area of 
land (e.g., square footage) required to be dedicated under this ordinance multiplied by 
the fair market value of the land (e.g., $/square foot) in the development at the time of 
preliminary plat approval by the Council.  The City shall identify the location of the 
property to be appraised, using the standards in Sections 4.10.5.4 and 4.10.5.5 of these 
ordinances.  The appraisal shall be submitted by a mutually agreed upon appraiser and 
paid for by the applicant.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 3.  Except as otherwise provided, the voluntary cash contribution in lieu of Park land shall 
also include the cost for Park improvements, including all costs of acquisition, 
construction and all related costs.  The cost for such improvements shall be based upon 
the estimated costs provided by a qualified contractor and/or vendor.  In the Business 
(B), Limited Business (LB), Neighborhood Business (NB) and Transitional (TN) zoning 
districts, in-lieu contributions will not include the cost for Park improvements. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ H. 4. In-lieu contributions must be segregated by the City and not used for any other 
purpose other than the acquisition of Park land and/or Park improvements, which may 
include upgrades and replacement of Park improvements.  Such funds should be used, 
whenever feasible or practicable, on improvements within walking distance of the 
residents of the subdivision.   

--73--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05: Improvements Required:  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.010 Minimum Improvements Required: It shall be a requirement of the Developer to 
construct the minimum infrastructure improvements set forth herein and any required 
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision, all to City Standards and procedures, 
set forth in Title 18 of the Hailey Municipal Code and adopted by ordinance in 
accordance with the notice and hearing procedures provided in Idaho Code §67-6509. 
Alternatives to the minimum improvement standards may be recommended for 
approval by the City Engineer and approved by the City Council at its sole discretion 
only upon showing that the alternative is clearly superior in design and effectiveness 
and will promote the public health, safety and general welfare. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Plans Filed, maintained: Six (6) copies of all improvement plans shall be filed with the 
City Engineer and made available to each department head.  Upon final approval two 
(2) sets of revised plans shall be returned to the Developer at the pre-construction 
conference with the City Engineer’s written approval thereon.  One set of final plans 
shall be on-site at all times for inspection purposes and to note all field changes upon. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B.  Preconstruction Meeting: Prior to the start of any construction, it shall be required that 
a pre-construction meeting be conducted with the Developer or his authorized 
representative/engineer, the contractor, the City Engineer and appropriate City 
departments.  An approved set of plans shall be provided to the Developer and 
contractor at or shortly after this meeting. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C.  Term of Guarantee of Improvements: The developer shall guarantee all improvements 
pursuant to this Section for no less than one year from the date of approval of all 
improvements as complete and satisfactory by the City engineer, except that parks 
shall be guaranteed and maintained by the developer for a period of two years. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.020: Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.020 Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping: The developer shall construct all streets, 

alleys, curb and gutter, lighting, sidewalks, street trees and landscaping, and irrigation 
systems to meet City Standards, the requirements of this ordinance, the approval of 
the Council, and to the finished grades which have been officially approved by the City 
engineer as shown upon approved plans and profiles.  The developer shall pave all 
streets and alleys with an asphalt plant-mix and shall chip-seal streets and alleys within 
one year of construction.   

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Street Cuts: Street cuts made for the installation of services under any existing 
improved public street shall be repaired in a manner which shall satisfy the Street 
Superintendent, shall have been approved by the Hailey City Engineer or his authorized 
representative, and shall meet City Standards.  Repair may include patching, skim coats 
of asphalt or, if the total area of asphalt removed exceeds 25% of the street area, the 
complete removal and replacement of all paving adjacent to the development.  Street 
cut repairs shall also be guaranteed for no less than one year. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

--74--



Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B.  Signage: Street name signs and traffic control signs shall be erected by the Developer in 
accordance with City Standard, and the street name signs and traffic control signs shall 
thereafter be maintained by the City. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C.  Streetlights: Street lights in the Recreational Green Belt, Limited Residential, General 
Residential, and Transitional zoning districts are not required improvements.  Where 
proposed, street lighting in all zoning districts shall meet all requirements of Chapter 
VIIIB of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met.  
 
 

16.05.030: Sewer Connections 
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.030 Sewer Connections: The developer shall construct a municipal sanitary sewer 

connection for each and every developable lot within the development.  The developer 
shall provide sewer mains of adequate size and configuration in accordance with City 
standards, and all federal, state, and local regulations. Such mains shall provide 
wastewater flow throughout the development.  All sewer plans shall be submitted to 
the City engineer for review and approval.  At the City engineer’s discretion, plans may 
be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
for review and comments.  

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.040: Water Connections 

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Requirements: The developer shall construct a municipal potable water connection, 
water meter and water meter vault in accordance with City Standards or other 
equipment as may be approved by the City engineer, for each and every developable 
lot within the development.  The developer shall provide water mains and services of 
adequate size and configuration in accordance with City Standards, and all federal, 
state, and local regulations.  Such water connection shall provide all necessary 
appurtenances for fire protection, including fire hydrants, which shall be located in 
accordance with the IFC and under the approval of the Hailey Fire Chief.  All water 
plans shall be submitted to the City engineer for review and approval.  At the City 
Engineer’s discretion, plans may be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for review and comments. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Townsite Overlay: Within the Townsite Overlay District, where water main lines within 
the alley are less than six (6) feet deep, the developer shall install insulating material 
(blue board insulation or similar material) for each and every individual water service 
line and main line between and including the subject property and the nearest public 
street, as recommended by the City Engineer. 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A, as this project is not within the Townsite Overlay (TO) District.  

16.05.050: Drainage  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.050 Drainage: The developer shall provide drainage areas of adequate size and number to 

meet the approval of the street superintendent and the City engineer or his authorized 
representative. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

--75--



16.05.060: Utilities  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.060 Utilities: The developer shall construct each and every individual service connection 

and all necessary trunk lines, and/or conduits for those improvements, for natural gas, 
electricity, telephone, and cable television to the property line before placing base 
gravel for the street or alley. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.070: Parks, Green Space  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.070 Parks, Green Space: The developer shall improve all parks and green space areas as 

presented to and approved by the hearing examiner or commission and council. 
Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.05.080: Installation to Specifications; Inspections  
☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.080 Installation to Specifications; Inspections: All improvements are to be installed under 

the specifications and inspection of the City engineer or his authorized representative.  
The minimum construction requirements shall meet City Standards or the Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) standards, whichever is the more stringent. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. . 

16.05.090: Completion; Inspections; Acceptance  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Installation of all infrastructure improvements must be completed by the developer 
and inspected and accepted by the City prior to signature of the plat by City 
representatives, or according to a phasing agreement.  A post-construction conference 
shall be requested by the developer and/or contractor and conducted with the 
developer and/or contractor, the City engineer, and appropriate City departments to 
determine a punch list of items for final acceptance. 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. The developer may, in lieu of actual construction, provide to the City security pursuant 
to Section 3.3.7, for all infrastructure improvements to be completed by developer 
after the final plat has been signed by City representatives. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A. Completion of all major infrastructure by the Developer is preferred over 
bonding. 

16.05.100: As Built Plans and Specifications  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.100 As Built Plans and Specifications: Prior to the acceptance by the City of any 
improvements installed by the developer, three (3) sets of “as-built plans and 
specifications” certified by the developer’s engineer shall be filed with the City 
engineer. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

16.08: Townhouses:  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.010 Plat Procedure:  The developer of the townhouse development shall submit with the 
preliminary plat application and all other information required herein a copy of the 
proposed party wall agreement and the proposed document(s) creating an association 
of owners of the proposed townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the 
control (including billing, where applicable) and maintenance of all common utilities, 
commonly held facilities, garages, parking and/or green spaces. Prior to final plat 
approval, the developer shall submit to the city a final copy of the party wall 

--76--



agreement and any other such documents and shall record the documents prior to or 
at the same time of the recordation of the plat, which plat shall reflect the recording 
instrument numbers thereupon. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.020 Garages:  All garages shall be designated on the preliminary and final plats and on all 
deeds as part of the particular townhouse units. Detached garages may be platted on 
separate sublots; provided, that the ownership of detached garages is appurtenant to 
specific townhouse units on the townhouse plat and that the detached garage(s) may 
not be sold and/or owned separate from any dwelling unit(s) within the townhouse 
development. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.030 Storage, Parking Areas:  Residential townhouse developments shall provide parking 
spaces according to the requirements of title 17, chapter 17.09 of this code. (Ord. 1191, 
2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.040  Construction Standards: All townhouse development construction shall be in 
accordance with the IBC, IRC and IFC. Each townhouse unit must have separate water, 
sewer and utility services, which do not pass through another building or unit. (Ord. 
1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.050  General Applicability: All other provisions of this title and all applicable ordinances, 
rules and regulations of the city and all other governmental entities having jurisdiction 
shall be complied with by townhouse developments. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.060  Expiration: Townhouse developments which have received final plat approval shall 
have a period of three (3) calendar years from the date of final plat approval by the 
council to obtain a building permit. Developments which have not received a building 
permit shall be null and void and the plats associated therewith shall be vacated by the 
council. If a development is to be phased, construction of the second and succeeding 
phases shall be contingent upon completion of the preceding phase unless the 
requirement is waived by the council. Further, if construction on any townhouse 
development or phase of any development ceases or is not diligently pursued for a 
period of three (3) years without the prior consent of the council, that portion of the 
plat pertinent to the undeveloped portion of the development shall be vacated. (Ord. 
1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

 The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.070  Conversion: The conversion by subdivision of existing units into townhouses shall not 
be subject to section 16.04.110 of this title. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.080  Density: The maximum number of cottage townhouse units on any parcel shall be 
twelve (12), and not more than two (2) cottage townhouse developments shall be 
constructed adjacent to each other. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 

Staff 
Comments 

The Commission has found this standard to be met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.11.010 Exceptions: Whenever the tract to be subdivided is, in the shape or size, or is 
surrounded by such development or unusual conditions that the strict application of 
the requirements contained herein would result in real difficulties and substantial 

--77--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=17-17.09
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=16.04.110


hardships or injustices, the council may vary or modify such requirements by making 
findings for their decision so that the developer is allowed to develop his property in a 
reasonable manner, while ensuring that the public welfare and interests of the city and 
surrounding area  are protected and the general intent and spirit of this title are 
preserved. As used in this section, the phrase “real difficulties and substantial 
hardships or injustices” shall apply only to situations where strict application of the 
requirements of this title will deny to the developer the reasonable and beneficial use 
of the property in question, and not in situations where the developer establishes only 
that exceptions will allow more financially feasible or profitable subdivision. (Ord. 
1191, 2015).  

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

 
17.06.060 Criteria. 

A. The Commission or Hearing Examiner shall determine the following before approval is given: 
 

1. The project does not jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of the public. 
2. The project conforms to the applicable specifications outlined in the Design Review 

Guidelines, as set forth herein, applicable requirements of the Zoning Title, and City 
Standards. 

 
B. Conditions.  The Commission or Hearing Examiner may impose any condition deemed 

necessary.  The Commission or Hearing Examiner may also condition approval of a project 
with subsequent review and/or approval by the Administrator or Planning Staff.  Conditions 
which may be attached include, but are not limited to those which will: 
 

1. Ensure compliance with applicable standards and guidelines. 
2. Require conformity to approved plans and specifications. 
3. Require security for compliance with the terms of the approval. 
4. Minimize adverse impact on other development. 
5. Control the sequence, timing and duration of development. 
6. Assure that development and landscaping are maintained properly. 
7. Require more restrictive standards than those generally found in the Zoning Title. 

 
C. Security.  The applicant may, in lieu of actual construction of any required or approved 

improvement, provide to the City such security as may be acceptable to the City, in a form and 
in an amount equal to the cost of the engineering or design, materials and installation of the 
improvements not previously installed by the applicant, plus fifty percent (50%), which 
security shall fully secure and guarantee completion of the required improvements within a 
period of one (1) year from the date the security is provided.   
 

--78--



1. If any extension of the one-year period is granted by the City, each additional year, or 
portion of each additional year, shall require an additional twenty percent (20%) to be 
added to the amount of the original security initially provided. 

2. In the event the improvements are not completely installed within one (1) year, or 
upon the expiration of any approved extension, the City may, but is not obligated, to 
apply the security to the completion of the improvements and complete construction 
of the improvements. 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact, the Commission makes the following recommendations: 

1. Adequate notice, pursuant to Title 16, Section 16.03.010, of the Hailey Subdivision Ordinance, 
was given for the public hearing.  

2. Upon compliance with the conditions noted below, the Application substantially meets the 
standards of approval set forth in the Hailey Subdivision Ordinance.  

 
The Preliminary Pat Application for Kilgore Properties, LLC, represented by Matt Watson, to be located 
along Shenandoah Drive, in Section 15, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., City of Hailey, Blaine County, Idaho, meets 
the standards of approval set forth in the Hailey Municipal Code, and is recommended for approval by 
the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission, subject to the following conditions, (a) through (j), and 
noted below:  
 

a) All conditions of the Planned Unit Development approval shall be met.  
b) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met.  
c) All City infrastructure requirements shall be met as outlined in Title 16, Chapter 16.05 of the 

Hailey Municipal Code. Detailed plans for all infrastructure to be installed or improved at or 
adjacent to the site shall be submitted for City of Hailey approval, and shall meet City Standards 
where required. Infrastructure to be completed at the Applicant’s sole expense include, but will 
not be limited to: 

i. Permits shall be obtained for installation of all drywells. 
ii. A Site Alteration Permit shall be obtained prior to any development occurring.  

iii. The Applicant shall install metal collars for the meter vault lids on any and all meter 
vaults located in asphalt or concrete.  

d) Preliminary Plat approval is subject to the Flood Hazard Development Permit, approved on 
February 26, 2020. 

e) All improvements and other requirements shall be completed and accepted, or surety provided 
pursuant to Subsections 16.03.030(I) and 16.05.090(B) of the Hailey Municipal Code, prior to 
recordation of the Final Plat. 

f) The Final Plat must be submitted within one (1) calendar year from the date of approval of the 
Preliminary Plat, unless otherwise allowed for within a phasing agreement.   

g) Any subdivision inspection fees due shall be paid prior to recording the Final Plat. 
h) Any application development fees shall be paid prior to recording the Final Plat. 
i) The Applicant shall submit an Erosion Control Plan prior to Final Plat.  

--79--



j) Prior to any future development in the SFHA, the property owner shall be required to obtain a
Flood Hazard Development Permit from the City of Hailey for the proposed work.

Signed this _____ day of ________________, 2020. 

____________________________ 
Janet Fugate, Planning & Zoning Commission Chair 

Attest: 

_______________________________ 
Jessie Parker, Community Development Assistant 

16 April

--80--



Return to AIS 

--81--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--82--



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  
 
DATE:  5/26/2020   DEPARTMENT:   Community Development   DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE:    LH 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-SUBJECT:   
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Subdivision Application (Phase I) by S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC, 
represented by Alpine Enterprises Inc., for Quigley Townhomes, located at Lot 1A and Lot 2A of Quigley 
View Subdivision (631 East Croy Street), where Lot 1A and Lot 2A are subdivided into eight (8) 
townhouse sublots, located within the Limited Residential (LR-1) Zoning District. This project converts a 
condominium subdivision to a townhouse subdivision. 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

AUTHORITY:  ID Code ____________   IAR ___________  City Ordinance/Code Title 16  
(IFAPPLICABLE)          
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-BACKGROUND:   
On April 20, 2020 the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered a Preliminary Plat Application 
for Quigley Townhomes, located at Lot 1A and Lot 2A of Quigley View Subdivision (631 East Croy Street), 
where Lot 1A and Lot 2A are subdivided into eight (8) townhouse sublots, located within the Limited 
Residential (LR-1) Zoning District. On May 4, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission made a 
recommendation to the Hailey City Council to approve the plat as outlined in the staff report. 
 
S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC submitted an Application for Townhouse Subdivision of an existing eight (8) unit 
condominium project, to convert these condominiums to townhouses.  Project background: 

1) The 12-unit project was constructed in 1977 and remodeled in 2007, previously called Del Norte 
Apartments. 

2) On September 24, 2008, the Hailey City council approved a condominium plat for these 12 units. 

3) Lot 3A was subsequently sold. 

4) In January 2009, Phase 1 of the Quigley Townhomes was recorded, which excluded Lot 3A from 
the project. 

5) The applicant states that converting the condo project to a townhome gives greater 
opportunities for purchase. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Staff Report  
2. Preliminary Plat Map, Site Plan and Landscape Plan 
3. Planning and Zoning Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, dated May 4, 2020.  
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FISCAL IMPACT / PROJECT FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  
Caselle #___________________ 
Budget Line Item #____________    YTD Line Item Balance $__________________ 
Estimated Hours Spent to Date:       Estimated Completion Date:  
Staff Contact: Lisa Horowitz    Phone # 788-9815 #13 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
- 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OTHER AFFECTED CITY DEPARTMENTS: (IFAPPLICABLE) 
__x _ City Attorney       ___City Administrator       _x__ Engineer ___ Building 
___ Library        _x__ planning         ___ Fire Dept. ___ _______________ 
___ Safety Committee    ___ P & Z Commission       ___ Police  ___ _______________ 
__x_ Streets        __x_ Public Works, Parks       ___Mayor  ___ _______________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--83--



- 
RECOMMENDATION FROM APPLICABLE DEPARTMENT HEAD: 

 Conduct a public hearing on the Quigley Townhomes Preliminary Plat Application , and move to approve. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
- 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS/APPROVAL: 
City Administrator _____________ Dept. Head Attend Meeting (circle one) Yes  No 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, 
located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision with conditions (a) through (h) finding that the 
application meets all City standards.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, 
located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision, finding that ________________ (Council should 
cite which standards are not met and provided the reason why each identified standard is not met). 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing upon the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley 
Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision to 
__________________ [the Council should specify a date]. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date     ______________________ 
City Clerk ______________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-FOLLOW-UP: 
*Ord./Res./Agrmt. /Order Originals: *Additional/Exceptional Originals to: ________________ 
Copies (all info.):    Copies  
Instrument # _______________________       

--84--



Return to AIS 

--85--



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
TO:   Hailey City Council 
 
FROM:   Lisa Horowitz, Community Development Director 
 
RE:   Preliminary Plat- Quigley Townhomes 
 
HEARING:  May 26, 2020 
 
 
Applicant:  S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC 
 
Project:   Quigley Townhomes 
 
Request:  Preliminary Plat  
 
Location:                           Lot 1A and 2A of Quigley View Subdivision   
   
Property Address:           631 E Croy Street 
 
Size:                                    .5 Acres 

 
Zoning:                               Limited Residential 1 (LR 1) 
                               
Background 
S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC submitted an Application for Townhouse Subdivision of an existing eight (8) unit 
condominium project, to convert these condominiums to townhouses.  Project background: 

1) The 12-unit project was constructed in 1977 and remodeled in 2007, previously called Del Norte 
Apartments. 

2) On September 24, 2008, the Hailey City council approved a condominium plat for these 12 units. 

3) Lot 3A was subsequently sold. 

4) In January 2009, Phase 1 of the Quigley Townhomes was recorded, which excluded Lot 3A from 
the project. 

5) The applicant states that converting the condo project to a townhome gives greater 
opportunities for purchase. 

 
Procedural History 
 
The Application was submitted on January 17, 2020 and certified complete on January 24, 2020. A public 
hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission was on be held on April 6, 2020, and continued on 
record to April 20, 2020 in the Hailey City Council Chambers. The Hailey Planning and Zoning 

--86--



Commission recommended this project for approval at the April 20, 2020 Public Hearing and Findings of 
Fact were approved at the May 4, 2020 Public Hearing. 
 
Notice 
Notice for the April 6, 2020, public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on March 18, 
2020. The notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet and to public agencies on March 18, 
2020. Notice for the May 26, 2020, public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on May 
7, 2020. The notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet and to public agencies on May 5, 
2020. 

 
Standards of Evaluation for a Subdivision 

 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ 
 

☐ 16.04.010 
Development 
Standards 

Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be 
subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title and 
any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey, and shall be in accordance 
with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The proposed Townhouse Subdivision is almost identical to the underlying condominium 
subdivision.  The eight units each have one dedicated parking space, and the complex 
contains an additional 13 guest parking spaces. Common elements between the existing 
condo subdivision and the proposed townhouse subdivision include: 

• All elements of the built environment:  roads, utilities, parking, buildings, Number 
of units and parking spaces dedicated to each unit. 

Changes include identification of limited common areas (parking stall for each unit and 
patio areas), now differentiated from common areas (drive aisles and guest parking areas). 

The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

   
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.04.020 Streets: Streets shall be provided in all subdivisions where necessary to provide access 
and shall meet all standards below. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

None of these standards apply, as there are no changes to City Streets.  

☐ ☐ ☒ M.  Driveways:  

   Staff 
Comments 

No proposed driveways are shown. The project contains a parking access lane. 
 

☐ ☐ ☒ M. 1.  Driveways may provide access to not more than two (2) residential dwelling units.  
Where a parcel to be subdivided will have one lot fronting on a street, not more than 
one additional single-family lot accessed by a driveway may be created in the rear of the 
parcel.  In such a subdivision, where feasible (e.g., no driveway already exists), both lots 
shall share access via a single driveway.  Driveways shall not be named.  

--87--



 

   Staff 
Comments 

No proposed driveways are shown. The project contains a parking access lane. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ N.  Parking Access Lane: A parking access lane shall not be considered a street, but shall 
comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and 
ordinances. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The proposed parking access lane conforms with Fire Department requirements. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ O. Fire Lanes: Required fire lanes, whether in private streets, driveways or parking access 
lanes, shall comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes 
and ordinances. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The parking access lane serves as a Fire Lane. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.060: Sidewalks and Drainage Improvements  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ A. Sidewalks and drainage improvements are required in all zoning districts and shall be 
located and constructed according to applicable city standards, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  
 

Staff 
Comments 

Sidewalks were paid for in lieu in 2008. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.040: Alleys and Easements 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A.  Alleys:  

   Staff 
Comments 

An alley is shown on the plat to the rear of the property.   

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 4. All infrastructures to be installed underground shall, where possible, be 
installed in the alleys platted. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All utilities are in place and are underground. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 5. Alleys in commercial areas shall be improved with drainage as appropriate and which 
the design meets the approval of the City Engineer.  The Developer shall provide storm 
sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and number to contain any runoff within 
the streets in the subdivision upon the property in conformance with the latest 
applicable Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of 
state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed by 
City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 6. Dead-end alleys shall not be allowed. 
 

--88--



Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 7. Where alleys are not provided, easements of not less than ten (10) feet in width may be 
required on each side of all rear and/or side lot lines (total width = 20 feet) where 
necessary for wires, conduits, storm or sanitary sewers, gas and water lines.  Easements 
of greater width may be required along lines, across lots, or along boundaries, where 
necessary for surface drainage or for the extension of utilities. 
 

Staff 
Comments  

An alley exists, but has not historically been used to service this property.  Plat notes 
mention the 5’ side yard utility easement and the 10’ easement centered on water and 
sewer lines.  Staff requests that these be shown graphically on the plat.  (Note that the 5’ 
side yard easement would be needed on the east side only, as Croy Street is the front 
property line and the west side abuts an alley). 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☒ ☐ ☐  

B. Easements.  Easements, defined as the use of land not having all the rights of ownership 
and limited to the purposes designated on the plat, shall be placed on the plat as 
appropriate.  Plats shall show the entity to which the easement has been granted.  
Easements shall be provided for the following purposes: 
 

Staff 
Comments 

See comments above. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. To provide access through or to any property for the purpose of providing utilities, 
emergency services, public access, private access, recreation, deliveries or such other 
purpose.  Any subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a 20-foot 
wide fisherman’s access easement, measured from the Mean High-Water Mark, which 
shall provide for non-motorized public access.  Additionally, in appropriate areas, an 
easement providing non-motorized public access through the subdivision to the river 
shall be required as a sportsman’s access. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Property does not border Big Wood River. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. To provide protection from or buffering for any natural resource, riparian area, 
hazardous area, or other limitation or amenity on, under, or over the land.  Any 
subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a one hundred (100) foot 
wide riparian setback easement, measured from the Mean High Water Mark, upon 
which no permanent structure shall be built, in order to protect the natural vegetation 
and wildlife along the river bank and to protect structures from damage or loss due to 
river bank erosion. A twenty-five (25) foot wide riparian setback easement shall be 
dedicated adjacent to tributaries of the Big Wood River.  Removal and maintenance of 
live or dead vegetation within the riparian setback easement is controlled by the 
applicable bulk requirement of the Flood Hazard Overlay District.  The riparian setback 
easement shall be fenced off during any construction on the property. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Property does not border Big Wood River. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. To provide for the storage of snow, drainage areas or the conduct of irrigation waters.  
Snow storage areas shall be not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of parking, sidewalk 
and other circulation areas.  No dimension of any snow storage area may be less than 10 
feet.  All snow storage areas shall be accessible and shall not be located over any above 
ground utilities, such as transformers. 
 

Staff Some snow storage areas are shown, but calculations have not been provided. 

--89--



Comments  
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.050: Blocks 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.050 Blocks: The length, width and shape of blocks shall be determined with due regard to 
adequate building sites suitable to the special needs of the type of use contemplated, 
the zoning requirements as to lot size and dimensions, the need for convenient access 
and safe circulation and the limitations and opportunities of topography. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The proposed subdivision meets this standard. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.060: Lots 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.060 Lots: All lots shown on the subdivision plat must conform to the minimum standards for 
lots in the District in which the subdivision is planned. The City will generally not 
approve single-family residential lots larger than one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 square 
feet).  In the event a single-family residential lot greater than one-half (1/2) acre is 
platted, irrigation shall be restricted to not more than one-half (1/2) acre, pursuant to 
Idaho Code §42-111, and such restriction shall be included as a plat note.  District 
regulations are found in the Zoning Chapter. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

There are no “lots” only Townhouse sublots.  Therefore, these standards do not apply. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.070: Orderly Development  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Phasing Required: Development of subdivisions shall be phased to avoid the extension 
of City services, roads and utilities through undeveloped land. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Agreement: Developers requesting phased subdivisions shall enter into a phasing 
agreement with the City.  Any phasing agreement shall be approved and executed by the 
Council and the Developer on or before the preliminary plat approval by the Council. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ 
 

☐  ☐ C. Mitigation of Negative Effects: No subdivision shall be approved which affects the ability 
of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver services without 
compromising quality of service delivery to current residents or imposing substantial 
additional public costs upon current residents, unless the Developer provides for the 
mitigation of the effects of subdivision. Such mitigation may include, but is not limited 
to the following: 

1. Provision of on-site or off-site street or intersection improvements. 

--90--



2. Provision of other off-site improvements. 

3. Dedications and/or public improvements on property frontages. 

4. Dedication or provision of parks or green space. 

5. Provision of public service facilities. 

6. Construction of flood control canals or devices. 

7. Provisions for ongoing maintenance. 

Staff 
Comments 

No impacts are associated with the conversion of a Condominium Subdivision to a 
Townhouse Subdivision. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

D.  When the developer of contiguous parcels proposes to subdivide any portion of the 
contiguous parcels, an area development plan shall be submitted and approved. The 
Commission and Council shall evaluate the following basic site criteria and make 
appropriate findings of fact: 

1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system and 
shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. 

2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle ways 
and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green space, public 
lands, or other destinations. 

3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective 
layout feasible. 

4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in 
the most effective layout feasible. 

5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels. 
6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels. 
7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural 

resource areas. 
The commission and council may require that any or all contiguous parcels be included 
in the subdivision. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A- all land owned by this applicant is included. 

16.04.080: Perimeter Walls, Gates and Berms  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

16.04.080 The City of Hailey shall not approve any residential subdivision application that includes 
any type of perimeter wall or gate that restricts access to the subdivision.  This 
regulation does not prohibit fences on or around individual lots.  The City shall also not 
allow any perimeter landscape berm more than 3’ higher than the previously existing 
(original) grade. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No perimeter gate or wall is proposed.  
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.090: Cuts, Fills, Grading and Drainage  

--91--



Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ A. Plans Required: Proposed subdivisions shall be carefully planned to be compatible with 
natural topography, soil conditions, geology and hydrology of the site, as well as to 
minimize cuts; fills, alterations of topography, streams, drainage channels; and 
disruption of soils or vegetation.  Fill within the floodplain shall comply with the 
requirements of the Flood Hazard Overlay District of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No cuts, fills, grading or new drainage is planned as this is only a plat conversion. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

16.04.100: Overlay Districts  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

 ☐     
 

☐       ☒    A. Flood Hazard Overlay District: 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivision located within the Flood Hazard Overlay District 
shall comply with all provisions of Section 4.10 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

A. 2.  Subdivisions located partially in the Flood Hazard Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Flood Hazard Overlay District to the extent possible. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. Any platted lots adjacent to the Big Wood River or its tributaries shall have designated 
building envelopes. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Hillside Overlay District: 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivisions located within the Hillside Overlay District shall 
comply with all provisions of Section 4.14, of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 
 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Subdivisions located partially in the Hillside Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Hillside Overlay District. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 3. All approved subdivisions shall contain a condition that a Site Alteration Permit is 
required before any development occurs. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

16.04.110: Parks, Pathways and Other Green Spaces 

--92--



Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Parks and Pathways: Unless otherwise provided, every subdivision shall set aside a Park 
and/or Pathway(s) in accordance with standards set forth herein. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

These standards do not apply for a conversion from condominium to townhouse. 

                  A. 1. Parks: 

  ☐   ☐ ☒ Staff 
Comments 

These standards do not apply for a conversion from condominium to townhouse. 

16.05: Improvements Required:  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.05.010 Minimum Improvements Required: It shall be a requirement of the Developer to 
construct the minimum infrastructure improvements set forth herein and any required 
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision, all to City Standards and procedures, 
set forth in Title 18 of the Hailey Municipal Code and adopted by ordinance in 
accordance with the notice and hearing procedures provided in Idaho Code §67-6509. 
Alternatives to the minimum improvement standards may be recommended for 
approval by the City Engineer and approved by the City Council at its sole discretion only 
upon showing that the alternative is clearly superior in design and effectiveness and will 
promote the public health, safety and general welfare. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No additional infrastructure is needed; all infrastructure is in place. 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Plans Filed, Maintained: Six (6) copies of all improvement plans shall be filed with the 
City Engineer and made available to each department head.  Upon final approval two (2) 
sets of revised plans shall be returned to the Developer at the pre-construction 
conference with the City Engineer’s written approval thereon.  One set of final plans 
shall be on-site at all times for inspection purposes and to note all field changes upon. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Preconstruction Meeting: Prior to the start of any construction, it shall be required that 
a pre-construction meeting be conducted with the Developer or his authorized 
representative/engineer, the contractor, the City Engineer and appropriate City 
departments.  An approved set of plans shall be provided to the Developer and 
contractor at or shortly after this meeting. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ C.  Term Of Guarantee Of Improvements: The developer shall guarantee all improvements 
pursuant to this Section for no less than one year from the date of approval of all 
improvements as complete and satisfactory by the city engineer, except that parks shall 
be guaranteed and maintained by the developer for a period of two years. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

 
16.05.020: Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping  

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.05.020 Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping: The developer shall construct all streets, 
alleys, curb and gutter, lighting, sidewalks, street trees and landscaping, and irrigation 
systems to meet City Standards, the requirements of this ordinance, the approval of the 

--93--



Council, and to the finished grades which have been officially approved by the city 
engineer as shown upon approved plans and profiles.  The developer shall pave all 
streets and alleys with an asphalt plant-mix, and shall chip-seal streets and alleys within 
one year of construction.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

None of these standards apply. 

 
16.05.030: Sewer Connections 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.030 Sewer Connections: The developer shall construct a municipal sanitary sewer connection 
for each and every developable lot within the development.  The developer shall provide 
sewer mains of adequate size and configuration in accordance with City standards, and 
all federal, state, and local regulations. Such mains shall provide wastewater flow 
throughout the development.  All sewer plans shall be submitted to the city engineer for 
review and approval.  At the city engineer’s discretion, plans may be required to be 
submitted to the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for review and 
comments.  

Staff 
Comments 

All sewer connections exist.  
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

 
16.05.040: Water Connections 

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Requirements: The developer shall construct a municipal potable water connection, 
water meter and water meter vault in accordance with City Standards or other 
equipment as may be approved by the city engineer, for each and every developable lot 
within the development.  The developer shall provide water mains and services of 
adequate size and configuration in accordance with City Standards, and all federal, state, 
and local regulations.  Such water connection shall provide all necessary appurtenances 
for fire protection, including fire hydrants, which shall be located in accordance with the 
IFC and under the approval of the Hailey Fire Chief.  All water plans shall be submitted to 
the city engineer for review and approval.  At the City Engineer’s discretion, plans may 
be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
for review and comments. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All water connections exist.  
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Townsite Overlay: Within the Townsite Overlay District, where water main lines within 
the alley are less than six (6) feet deep, the developer shall install insulating material 
(blue board insulation or similar material) for each and every individual water service 
line and main line between and including the subject property and the nearest public 
street, as recommended by the City Engineer. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

 
16.05.050: Drainage  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.050 Drainage: The developer shall provide drainage areas of adequate size and number to 
meet the approval of the street superintendent and the city engineer or his authorized 
representative. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

--94--



Staff 
Comments 

No changes to on site drainage. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

 
16.05.060: Utilities  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.060 Utilities: The developer shall construct each and every individual service connection and 
all necessary trunk lines, and/or conduits for those improvements, for natural gas, 
electricity, telephone, and cable television to the property line before placing base 
gravel for the street or alley. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All utilities are in place. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

 
16.05.070: Parks, Green Space  

☒? ☐ ☐ 16.05.070 Parks, Green Space: The developer shall improve all parks and green space areas as 
presented to and approved by the hearing examiner or commission and council. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

See section 16.04.110 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 
 

 
16.05.080: Installation To Specifications; Inspections  

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ 16.05.080 Installation to Specifications; Inspections: All improvements are to be installed under the 
specifications and inspection of the city engineer or his authorized representative.  The 
minimum construction requirements shall meet City Standards or the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) standards, whichever is the more stringent. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No inspections are needed- all improvements are in place. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

 
16.05.090: Completion; Inspections; Acceptance  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Installation of all infrastructure improvements must be completed by the developer, and 
inspected and accepted by the City prior to signature of the plat by City representatives, 
or according to a phasing agreement.  A post-construction conference shall be requested 
by the developer and/or contractor and conducted with the developer and/or 
contractor, the city engineer, and appropriate City departments to determine a punch 
list of items for final acceptance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All infrastructure has been completed and accepted. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. The developer may, in lieu of actual construction, provide to the City security pursuant 
to Section 3.3.7, for all infrastructure improvements to be completed by developer after 
the final plat has been signed by City representatives. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

--95--



Staff 
Comments 

N/A. 
 

 
16.05.100: As Built Plans and Specifications  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.100 As Built Plans and Specifications: Prior to the acceptance by the City of any 
improvements installed by the developer, three (3) sets of “as-built plans and 
specifications” certified by the developer’s engineer shall be filed with the city engineer. 
(Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A. 
 

16.08: Townhouses:  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.010 Plat Procedure:  The developer of the townhouse development shall submit with the 
preliminary plat application and all other information required herein a copy of the 
proposed party wall agreement and the proposed document(s) creating an association 
of owners of the proposed townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the 
control (including billing, where applicable) and maintenance of all common utilities, 
commonly held facilities, garages, parking and/or green spaces. Prior to final plat 
approval, the developer shall submit to the city a final copy of the party wall agreement 
and any other such documents and shall record the documents prior to or at the same 
time of the recordation of the plat, which plat shall reflect the recording instrument 
numbers thereupon. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Association documents have been submitted.  The party Wall agreement is imbedded in 
the CC & R’s.  The Building Official will inspect the separation between the condo units to 
ensure that a party wall is in place prior to the hearing. 
 
The Commission found that this standard has been met. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.020 Garages:  All garages shall be designated on the preliminary and final plats and on all 
deeds as part of the particular townhouse units. Detached garages may be platted on 
separate sublots; provided, that the ownership of detached garages is appurtenant to 
specific townhouse units on the townhouse plat and that the detached garage(s) may 
not be sold and/or owned separate from any dwelling unit(s) within the townhouse 
development. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.030 Storage, Parking Areas:  Residential townhouse developments shall provide parking 
spaces according to the requirements of title 17, chapter 17.09 of this code. (Ord. 1191, 
2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Parking requirements are met, and exceeded. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.040  Construction Standards: All townhouse development construction shall be in accordance 
with the IBC, IRC and IFC. Each townhouse unit must have separate water, sewer and 
utility services, which do not pass through another building or unit. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.050  General Applicability: All other provisions of this title and all applicable ordinances, rules 

--96--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=17-17.09


and regulations of the city and all other governmental entities having jurisdiction shall 
be complied with by townhouse developments. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.060  Expiration: Townhouse developments which have received final plat approval shall have 
a period of three (3) calendar years from the date of final plat approval by the council to 
obtain a building permit. Developments which have not received a building permit shall 
be null and void and the plats associated therewith shall be vacated by the council. If a 
development is to be phased, construction of the second and succeeding phases shall be 
contingent upon completion of the preceding phase unless the requirement is waived by 
the council. Further, if construction on any townhouse development or phase of any 
development ceases or is not diligently pursued for a period of three (3) years without 
the prior consent of the council, that portion of the plat pertinent to the undeveloped 
portion of the development shall be vacated. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.070  Conversion: The conversion by subdivision of existing units into townhouses shall not be 
subject to section 16.04.110 of this title. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.080  Density: The maximum number of cottage townhouse units on any parcel shall be 
twelve (12), and not more than two (2) cottage townhouse developments shall be 
constructed adjacent to each other. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.11.010 Exceptions: Whenever the tract to be subdivided is, in the shape or size, or is surrounded 
by such development or unusual conditions that the strict application of the 
requirements contained herein would result in real difficulties and substantial hardships 
or injustices, the council may vary or modify such requirements by making findings for 
their decision so that the developer is allowed to develop his property in a reasonable 
manner, while ensuring that the public welfare and interests of the city and surrounding 
area  are protected and the general intent and spirit of this title are preserved. As used 
in this section, the phrase “real difficulties and substantial hardships or injustices” shall 
apply only to situations where strict application of the requirements of this title will 
deny to the developer the reasonable and beneficial use of the property in question, and 
not in situations where the developer establishes only that exceptions will allow more 
financially feasible or profitable subdivision. (Ord. 1191, 2015).  
 

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact, the Commission makes the following recommendations: 

1. Adequate notice, pursuant to Title 16, Section 16.03.010, of the Hailey Subdivision 
Ordinance, was given for the public hearing.  

2. Upon compliance with the conditions noted below, the Application substantially meets the 
standards of approval set forth in the Hailey Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

--97--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=16.04.110


The Preliminary Pat Application for Quigley Townhomes by S.V. Flying Squirrels, LLC, to be located at 631 
E Croy Street (Lot 1A and 2A of Quigley View Subdivision) meets the standards of approval set forth in 
the Hailey Municipal Code, and is recommended for approval by the Hailey Planning and Zoning 
Commission, subject to the following conditions, (a) through (h), and noted below:  
 

a) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met.  Items to be completed 
at the applicant’s sole expense include, but will not be limited to, improvements shown on the 
submitted on the plat dated October 2, 2017. 

 
b) All City infrastructure requirements shall be met as outlined in Chapter 16.05 and 16.08 of the 

Subdivision Title.  Detailed plans for all infrastructure to be installed or improved at or adjacent 
to the site shall be submitted for Department approval and shall meet City Standards where 
required.  Infrastructure to be completed at the applicant’s sole expense include, but will not be 
limited to, the improvements shown on the most recent submitted plans and those listed in 
these conditions. 

 
c) Issuance of permits for the construction of buildings within the proposed subdivision shall be 

subject to Section 16.02.080 of the Subdivision Title. 
 

d) All improvements and other requirements shall be completed and accepted, or surety provided 
pursuant to subsections 16.03.030(I) and 16.05.090(B) of the Subdivision Title, prior to 
recordation of the final plat. 

 
e) The final plat must be submitted within one (1) calendar year from the date of approval of the 

preliminary plat, unless otherwise allowed for within a phasing agreement.   
 

f) Any subdivision inspection fees due shall be paid prior to recording the final plat. 
 

g) Any application development impact fees shall be paid prior to recording the final plat. 
 

h) The 10’ water, sewer easements and the 5’ utility easement shall be shown graphically on the 
plat. 
 

 
Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, 
located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision with conditions (a) through (h) finding that the 
application meets all City standards.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, 
located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision, finding that ________________ (Council should 
cite which standards are not met and provided the reason why each identified standard is not met). 
 

--98--



Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing upon the Preliminary Plat Application for Quigley 
Townhomes, by S.V. Flying Squirrels, located at Lots 1A and 2A, Quigley View Subdivision to 
__________________ [the Council should specify a date]. 

 

--99--



Return to AIS 

--100--



--101--



Return to AIS 

--102--



--103--



--104--



--105--



--106--



--107--



--108--



--109--



--110--



--111--



--112--



--113--



--114--



--115--



--116--



--117--



--118--



--119--



--120--



Return to AIS 

--121--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--122--



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

DATE:  05/26/2020   DEPARTMENT:   Community Development   DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE:    LH/CH 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
SUBJECT:   
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat Subdivision Application by Lena Cottages, LLC, represented by, where 
Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters Subdivision is subdivided into seven (7) sublots. This project is located within 
the General Residential (GR) Zoning District.  
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

AUTHORITY:  ID Code ____________   IAR ___________  City Ordinance/Code Title 16 
(IFAPPLICABLE) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BACKGROUND:   
On April 20, 2020, the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered a Preliminary Plat Application 
Lena Cottages, LLC, represented by Alpine Enterprises, where Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters Subdivision is 
subdivided into seven (7) sublots. 

Lena Cottages, LLC submitted an Application for Subdivision/Preliminary Plat of approximately .97 acres 
to be subdivided for a residential “cottage” development. The proposed subdivision consists of two 
phases:  Phase 1 contains seven (7) cottage sublots. Phase 2 will contain 2 townhouse sublots. The site is 
accessed via a parking lot connecting to a City Street. Adjacent use is residential, zoned General 
Residential (GR). The Planning and Zoning Commission has made a recommendation for approval to the 
Hailey City Council, as outlined in the attached Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, dated 
May 4, 2020. 

As noted, the property, Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters Subdivision, is proposed to be subdivided into seven 
(7) cottage sublots in Phase 1 and two future townhouse sublots in Phase 2. Cottage sublots will range in
size from 2,649 square feet to 3,705 square feet. Primary foot access to the properties will be via a five
foot (5’) wide common area paver walkway running west to east from the parking area, accessed via
Cutters Drive. The parking area is proposed to consist of a garage building, containing Garage Limited
Common Areas tied to respective Sublot Units, as well as four (4) open parking spots, including one (1)
accessible parking spot.

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Staff Report
2. Preliminary Plat Map, Site Plan and Landscape Plan
3. Planning and Zoning Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision, dated May 4, 2020 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FISCAL IMPACT / PROJECT FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  
Caselle #___________________ 
Budget Line Item #____________ YTD Line Item Balance $__________________ 
Estimated Hours Spent to Date:   Estimated Completion Date: 
Staff Contact: Lisa Horowitz  Phone # 788-9815 #13 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OTHER AFFECTED CITY DEPARTMENTS: (IF APPLICABLE) 
__x _ City Attorney  ___City Administrator  _x__Engineer ___ Building 
___ Library  _x__planning  ___ Fire Dept. ___ _______________ 
___ Safety Committee    _x__P & Z Commission  ___ Police ___ _______________ 
__x_ Streets   __x_ Public Works, Parks  ___Mayor ___ _______________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
RECOMMENDATION FROM APPLICABLE DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
Conduct a public hearing on the Lena Cottages Preliminary Plat Application. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS/APPROVAL: 

--123--



City Administrator _____________ Dept. Head Attend Meeting (circle one) Yes  No 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old 
Cutters, with conditions (a) through (i) finding that the application meets all City standards.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old 
Cutters, finding that ________________ [Council should cite which standards are not met and provided 
the reason why each identified standard is not met]. 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing upon the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages 
Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters to __________________ [the Council should specify a date]. 
Date     ______________________ 
City Clerk ______________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FOLLOW-UP: 
*Ord./Res./Agrmt. /Order Originals: *Additional/Exceptional Originals to: ________________ 
Copies (all info.):    Copies  
Instrument # _______________________       

--124--



Return to AIS 

--125--



 
 
 
TO:   Hailey Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:   Lisa Horowitz, Community Development Director 
 
RE:   Preliminary Plat- Lena Cottages 
 
HEARING:  April 20, 2020 
 
 
Applicant:  Lena Cottages, LLC 
 
Project:   Lena Cottages 
 
Request:  Preliminary Plat  
 
Location:                           Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters Subdivision  
   
Property Address:           TBD 
 
Size:                                    .97 acres (42,313 sq. ft.) 

 
Zoning:                               General Residential (GR) 

                               
Background 
Lena Cottages, LLC submitted an Application for Subdivision/Preliminary Plat of approximately .97 acres 
to be subdivided utilized for residential “cottage” development. The proposed subdivision consists of two 
phases:  Phase 1 contains seven (7) cottage sublots. Phase 2 will contain 2 townhouse sublots. The site is 
accessed via a parking lot connecting to a City Street. Adjacent use is residential, zoned General Residential 
(GR). 

Procedural History 
 
The Application was submitted on January 21, 2020 and certified complete on January 29, 2020. A public 
hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission was scheduled to be held on April 6, 2020, in the 
Hailey City Council Chambers, and was continued to April 20, 2020 in the Hailey City Council Chambers. 
The applicant submitted new plans April 10, 2020 in response to staff recommendations. 
 
Notice 
Notice for the April 6, 2020, public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on March 18, 
2020. The notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet and to public agencies on March 18, 
2020. At the April 6, 2020 hearing, this application hearing was continued on record to April 20, 2020. 

STAFF REPORT 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission 

Regular Meeting of April 20, 2020 

--126--



 

 
Standards of Evaluation for a Subdivision 

 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.010 
Development 
Standards 

Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be 
subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title 
and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in 
accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The recorded Cutters Plat anticipates a Cottage-style development on this lot. The 
Cutters plat is attached for reference. 

   
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.020 Streets: Streets shall be provided in all subdivisions where necessary to provide access 
and shall meet all standards below. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. The project is on the corner of CD Olena and 
Cutter Drives. 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Development Standards: All streets in the subdivision must be platted and developed 
with a width, alignment, and improvements such that the street is adequate to safely 
accommodate existing and anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic and meets City 
standards.  Streets shall be aligned in such a manner as to provide through, safe and 
efficient access from and to adjacent developments and properties and shall provide 
for the integration of the proposed streets with the existing pattern. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

☒ ☐  ☒ B. Cul-De-Sacs; Dead-End Streets: Cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall be allowed only if 
connectivity is not possible due to surrounding topography or existing platted 
development.  Where allowed, such cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets shall comply with 
all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and ordinances.  Street 
rights-of-way extended into un-platted areas shall not be considered dead end streets. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No dead-end streets are proposed.  

☒ ☐ ☐ C. Access: More than one access may be required based on the potential for impairment 
of a single access by vehicle congestion, terrain, climatic conditions or other factors 
that could limit access. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

One point of access to the proposed townhouse subdivision is shown from Cutters Drive.  
This access location appears to be appropriate for project access. The curb cut is 
existing. 

☒ ☐ ☐ D. Design: Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles 
and no street shall intersect any other street at less than eighty (80) degrees.  Where 

--127--



 possible, four way intersections shall be used.  A recommended distance of 500 feet, 
with a maximum of 750 feet, measured from the center line, shall separate any 
intersection.  Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to speed 
humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, meanderings, 
chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street design.  Alternate 
traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation by the City 
Engineer.  Three way intersections shall only be permitted where most appropriate or 
where no other configuration is possible.  A minimum distance of 150 feet, measured 
from the center line, shall separate any 2 three-way intersections.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

☐ 
 

☐ ☒ 
 

E. Centerlines: Street centerlines which deflect more than five (5) degrees shall be 
connected by a curve.  The radius of the curve for the center line shall not be more 
than 500 feet for an arterial street, 166 feet for a collector street and 89 feet for a 
residential street. Alternatively, traffic calming measures including but not limited to 
speed humps, speed tables, raised intersections, traffic circles or roundabouts, 
meanderings, chicanes, chokers, and/or neck-downs shall be a part of the street 
design. Alternate traffic calming measures may be approved with a recommendation 
by the City Engineer.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. No deflections in horizontal alignment are 
proposed.   

☒ ☐ 
 

☐ F. Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The 
minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be 
as specified in City Standards for the type of street. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ H. Road Grades: Road Grades shall be at least two percent (2%) and shall not generally 
exceed six percent (6%).  Grade may exceed 6%, where necessary, by 1% (total 7%) for 
no more than 300 feet or 2% (total 8%) for no more than 150 feet. No excess grade 
shall be located within 200 feet of any other excess grade nor there any horizontal 
deflection in the roadway greater than 30 degrees within 300 feet of where the excess 
grade decreases to a 2% slope.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ I.  Runoff: The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate 
size and number to contain any runoff within the streets in the subdivision in 
conformance with the applicable Federal, State and local regulations. The developer 
shall provide copies of state permits for shallow injection wells (drywells). Drainage 
plans shall be reviewed by City Staff and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer.  
Developer shall provide a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm Water 
Discharge from Construction Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than 
one acre. 
  

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

☒ ☐ ☐ J. Signage: The developer shall provide and install all street and traffic control signs in 
accordance with City Standards. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

--128--



☒ ☐ ☐ K. Dedication; Names: All streets and alleys within any subdivision shall be dedicated for 
public use, except as provided herein.  New street names (public and private) shall not 
be the same or similar to any other street names used in Blaine County. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All public streets are in place and complete. 

☐ ☒ ☐ L. Private Streets:  
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ M.  Driveways:  

   Staff 
Comments 

No specific driveways are proposed. 

☐ ☐ ☒ M. 1.  Driveways may provide access to not more than two (2) residential dwelling units.  
Where a parcel to be subdivided will have one lot fronting on a street, not more than 
one additional single family lot accessed by a driveway may be created in the rear of 
the parcel.  In such a subdivision, where feasible (e.g., no driveway already exists), both 
lots shall share access via a single driveway.  Driveways shall not be named.  
 

   Staff 
Comments 

No driveways are proposed as such: the site is accessed via a common entrance and 
parking drive aisle.  Residents would walk from the common Garage building to the units. 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ N.  Parking Access Lane: A parking access lane shall not be considered a street, but shall 
comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes and 
ordinances. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The project contains a parking access lane.  It has been reviewed by the Fire Chief, and 
the project is compliant with the IFC. 

☐ ☐ ☒ O. Fire Lanes: Required fire lanes, whether in private streets, driveways or parking access 
lanes, shall comply with all regulations set forth in the IFC and other applicable codes 
and ordinances. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A – however the city engineer has requested that a plat note be added to ensure that 
all future owners are aware that no on-street parking is permitted to ensure adequate 
access for emergency services. This has been made a condition of approval. 

16.04.060: Sidewalks and Drainage Improvements  
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ A. Sidewalks and drainage improvements are required in all zoning districts and shall be 
located and constructed according to applicable city standards, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  
 

Staff 
Comments 

Public Sidewalks are in place.  A walkway between sublots is shown as common area. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. The length of sidewalks and drainage improvements constructed shall be equal to the 
length of the subject property line(s) adjacent to any public street or private street. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Public Sidewalks are in place.   

☒ ☐ ☐ C. New sidewalks shall be planned to provide pedestrian connections to any existing and 
future sidewalks adjacent to the site.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

Public Sidewalks are in place.   

--129--



☒ ☐ ☐ D. Sites located adjacent to a public street or private street that are not currently through 
streets, regardless whether the street may provide a connection to future streets, shall 
provide sidewalks to facilitate future pedestrian connections.  
 

Staff 
Comments 

Public Sidewalks are in place.  A walkway between sublots is shown as common area. 
This walkway connects to Cutters park, which is adjacent. 

☐ ☐ ☒ E. The requirement for sidewalk and drainage improvements are not required for any lot 
line adjustment.  
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 
 

16.04.040: Alleys and Easements 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A.  Alleys:  

   Staff 
Comments 

N/A 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 4. All infrastructures to be installed underground shall, where possible, be 
installed in the alleys platted. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Proposed water and sewer mains identified on submitted plan are underground; 
however, no additional utilities are identified. All utilities shall be installed underground. 

 

☒? ☐ ☐ A. 7. Where alleys are not provided, easements of not less than ten (10) feet in width may 
be required on each side of all rear and/or side lot lines (total width = 20 feet) where 
necessary for wires, conduits, storm or sanitary sewers, gas and water lines.  
Easements of greater width may be required along lines, across lots, or along 
boundaries, where necessary for surface drainage or for the extension of utilities. 
 

Staff 
Comments  

Easements are required for power and gas service, which is not currently included in the 
proposed plan. Water lines are currently proposed across private, non-shared property 
as well – staff is working with the applicant’s engineer to resolve these issues and will 
bring any additional comments to the April 20, 2020 meeting. Resolution of these issues 
has been added as a condition of approval. 
 
Easements.  Easements, defined as the use of land not having all the rights of 
ownership and limited to the purposes designated on the plat, shall be placed on the 
plat as appropriate.  Plats shall show the entity to which the easement has been 
granted.  Easements shall be provided for the following purposes: 

• Access for utilities, emergency services, public access, private access, 
recreation, deliveries or other such purpose. 

• Protection from or buffering for any natural resource, riparian area, 
hazardous area, or other limitation or amenity on, under or over the land. 

• Storage of snow, drainage areas, or the conduct of irrigation waters. 

☒? ☐ ☐ B. 

Staff 
Comments 

See comments above. 
 
Additional easements are required for utilities beyond those included in the proposed plat. 
This has been added as a condition of approval.  
 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. To provide access through or to any property for the purpose of providing utilities, 
emergency services, public access, private access, recreation, deliveries or such other 
purpose.  Any subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a 20-foot 

--130--



wide fisherman’s access easement, measured from the Mean High Water Mark, which 
shall provide for non-motorized public access.  Additionally, in appropriate areas, an 
easement providing non-motorized public access through the subdivision to the river 
shall be required as a sportsman’s access. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Property does not border Big Wood River. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. To provide protection from or buffering for any natural resource, riparian area, 
hazardous area, or other limitation or amenity on, under, or over the land.  Any 
subdivision that borders on the Big Wood River shall dedicate a one hundred (100) 
foot wide riparian setback easement, measured from the Mean High Water Mark, 
upon which no permanent structure shall be built, in order to protect the natural 
vegetation and wildlife along the river bank and to protect structures from damage or 
loss due to river bank erosion. A twenty-five (25) foot wide riparian setback easement 
shall be dedicated adjacent to tributaries of the Big Wood River.  Removal and 
maintenance of live or dead vegetation within the riparian setback easement is 
controlled by the applicable bulk requirement of the Flood Hazard Overlay District.  
The riparian setback easement shall be fenced off during any construction on the 
property. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Property does not border Big Wood River. 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. To provide for the storage of snow, drainage areas or the conduct of irrigation waters.  
Snow storage areas shall be not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of parking, 
sidewalk and other circulation areas.  No dimension of any snow storage area may be 
less than 10 feet.  All snow storage areas shall be accessible and shall not be located 
over any above ground utilities, such as transformers. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Snow storage calculations are provided on the design review drawings and the plat, and 
meet this standard. 

16.04.050: Blocks 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.050 Blocks: The length, width and shape of blocks shall be determined with due regard to 
adequate building sites suitable to the special needs of the type of use contemplated, 
the zoning requirements as to lot size and dimensions, the need for convenient access 
and safe circulation and the limitations and opportunities of topography. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All blocks in the underlying Old Cutters plat are existing. 
 

16.04.060: Lots 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.04.060 Lots: All lots shown on the subdivision plat must conform to the minimum standards 
for lots in the District in which the subdivision is planned. The City will generally not 
approve single-family residential lots larger than one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 square 
feet).  In the event a single-family residential lot greater than one-half (1/2) acre is 
platted, irrigation shall be restricted to not more than one-half (1/2) acre, pursuant to 
Idaho Code §42-111, and such restriction shall be included as a plat note.  District 
regulations are found in the Zoning Chapter. 
 

--131--



Staff 
Comments 

The submitted preliminary plat shows that all proposed lots are less than ½ acre.  

☒ ☐ ☐ A. If lots are more than double the minimum size required for the zoning district, the 
Developer may be required to arrange lots in anticipation of future re-subdivision and 
provide for future streets where necessary to serve potential lots, unless the plat 
restricts further subdivision. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No lots are more than double the minimum size.   
 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. Double frontage lots shall be prohibited except where unusual topography, a more 
integrated street plan, or other conditions make it undesirable to meet this 
requirement. Double frontage lots are those created by either public or private 
streets, but not by driveways or alleys. Subdivisions providing a platted parcel of 25 
feet or more between any street right-of-way and any single row of lots shall not be 
considered to have platted double frontage lots.  The 25-foot wide parcel provided 
must be landscaped to provide a buffer between the street and the lot(s). 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No double frontage lots proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C. No unbuildable lots shall be platted.  Platted areas that are not buildable shall be 
noted as such and designated as “parcels” on the plat.  Green Space shall be clearly 
designated as such on the plat. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No unbuildable lots are shown.  

☐ 
 

☐ 
 

☒ D. A single flag lot may be permitted at the sole discretion of the Hearing Examiner or 
Commission and Council, in which the “flagpole” projection is serving as a driveway as 
provided herein, providing connection to and frontage on a public or a private street.   
Once established, a flag lot may not be further subdivided, but a lot line adjustment of 
a flag lot is not considered a further subdivision. The “flagpole” portion of the lot shall 
be included in lot area, but shall not be considered in determining minimum lot width.  
The “flagpole” shall be of adequate width to accommodate a driveway as required by 
this ordinance, fire and other applicable codes.  Flag lots within the Townsite Overlay 
District are not allowed, except where parcels do not have street access, such as 
parcels adjacent to the ITD right-of-way. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ E. All lots shall have frontage on a public or private street.  No frontage width shall be 
less than the required width of a driveway as provided under Sections 4.1.11.1 and 
4.5.4 of this Ordinance.  Townhouse Sub-Lots are excluded from this requirement; 
provided, however, that Townhouse Developments shall have frontage on a street. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All the lots are townhouse sublots and are exempt from this requirement. 

☐ ☐ ☒ F. In the Townsite Overlay District, original Townsite lots shall be subdivided such that 
the new platted lots are oriented the same as the original lots, i.e. lots shall be 
subdivided in such a way as to maintain frontage on both the street and alley.  
Exceptions may be made for corner properties with historic structures. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

16.04.070: Orderly Development  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

--132--



Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. Phasing Required: Development of subdivisions shall be phased to avoid the extension 
of City services, roads and utilities through undeveloped land. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. Agreement: Developers requesting phased subdivisions shall enter into a phasing 
agreement with the City.  Any phasing agreement shall be approved and executed by 
the Council and the Developer on or before the preliminary plat approval by the 
Council. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

A Phasing Agreement will be required, and will be reviewed by the City Council. 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ C. Mitigation of Negative Effects: No subdivision shall be approved which affects the 
ability of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver 
services without compromising quality of service delivery to current residents or 
imposing substantial additional public costs upon current residents, unless the 
Developer provides for the mitigation of the effects of subdivision. Such mitigation 
may include, but is not limited to the following: 

1. Provision of on-site or off-site street or intersection improvements. 
2. Provision of other off-site improvements. 
3. Dedications and/or public improvements on property frontages. 
4. Dedication or provision of parks or green space. 
5. Provision of public service facilities. 
6. Construction of flood control canals or devices. 
7. Provisions for ongoing maintenance. 

Staff 
Comments 

No impacts to off-site streets or intersections are anticipated. There are no on-site public 
streets or intersections. 
 
Park requirements have previously been met for this subdivision. 
 
The proposed development meets the density requirements for GR. The water 
distribution system and wastewater conveyance system and treatment facility all have 
capacity for the proposed 7 units.  

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

D.  When the developer of contiguous parcels proposes to subdivide any portion of the 
contiguous parcels, an area development plan shall be submitted and approved. The 
Commission and Council shall evaluate the following basic site criteria and make 
appropriate findings of fact: 

1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system 
and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. 

2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle 
ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green 
space, public lands, or other destinations. 

3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most 
effective layout feasible. 

4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed 
in the most effective layout feasible. 

5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels. 
6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels. 
7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural 

--133--



resource areas. 
The commission and council may require that any or all contiguous parcels be included 
in the subdivision. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The contiguous parcel owned by the applicant is proposed as Phase 2. 

16.04.080: Perimeter Walls, Gates and Berms  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

16.04.080 The City of Hailey shall not approve any residential subdivision application that 
includes any type of perimeter wall or gate that restricts access to the subdivision.  
This regulation does not prohibit fences on or around individual lots.  The City shall 
also not allow any perimeter landscape berm more than 3’ higher than the previously 
existing (original) grade. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No perimeter gate or wall is proposed.  

16.04.090: Cuts, Fills, Grading and Drainage  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ A. Plans Required: Proposed subdivisions shall be carefully planned to be compatible 
with natural topography, soil conditions, geology and hydrology of the site, as well as 
to minimize cuts; fills, alterations of topography, streams, drainage channels; and 
disruption of soils or vegetation.  Fill within the floodplain shall comply with the 
requirements of the Flood Hazard Overlay District of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Directional grading has been identified on the plat. Site appears to be fairly flat with no 
hydrologic issues.  
 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ A. 1. A preliminary soil report prepared by a qualified engineer may be required by the 
Hearing Examiner or Commission and/or Council as part of the preliminary plat 
application. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

A geotechnical report has not been submitted. Staff does not anticipate the need for a 
geotechnical report.  
 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. 2. A preliminary grading plan prepared by a civil engineer may be required by the 
Hearing Examiner or Commission and/or the Council as part of the preliminary plat 
application, to contain the following information: 

a. Proposed contours at a maximum of two (2) foot contour intervals; 
b. Cut and fill banks in pad elevations; 
c. Drainage patterns; 
d. Areas where trees and/or natural vegetation will be preserved; 
e. Location of all street and utility improvements including driveways to 

building envelopes; and   
f. Any other information which may reasonably be required by the 

Administrator, Hearing Examiner, Commission and/or Council. 

Staff 
Comments 

A directional grading plan has been submitted. Staff requests a road grading plan to 
ensure adequate drainage can be accomplished. 

--134--



 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. Design Standards: The proposed subdivision shall conform to the following design 
standards:  

Staff 
Comments 

 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 1.  Grading shall be designed to blend with natural land forms and to minimize the 
necessity of padding or terracing of building sites, excavation for foundations, and 
minimize the necessity of cuts and fills for streets and driveways. 
 

   Staff 
Comments 

A directional grading plan submitted. Site appears to be fairly flat, and no terracing or 
padding identified on preliminary plat.  
 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ B. 2. Areas within a subdivision which are not well suited for development because of 
existing soil conditions, steepness of slope, geology or hydrology shall be allocated for 
Green Space for the benefit of future property owners within the subdivision. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The site appears to be fairly flat and does not identify any questionable existing soil 
conditions, areas of steep slopes, geological or hydrological areas of concern.  
 

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ B. 3. Where existing soils and vegetation are disrupted by subdivision development, 
provision shall be made by the Developer for Revegetation of disturbed areas with 
perennial vegetation sufficient to stabilize the soil upon completion of the 
construction, including temporary irrigation for a sufficient period to establish 
perennial vegetation.  Until such time as the vegetation has been installed and 
established, the Developer shall maintain and protect all disturbed surfaces from 
erosion. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Erosion control and re-vegetation shall be included in final design. 
 
Developer shall re-vegetate disturbed area per this standard. 
 

☒ 
 

☐ 
 

☐ B. 4. Where cuts, fills or other excavation are necessary, the following development 
standards shall apply: 

a. Fill areas for structures or roads shall be prepared by removing all organic 
material detrimental to proper compaction for soil stability. 

b. Fill for structures or roads shall be compacted to at least 95 percent of 
maximum density as determined by American Association State Highway 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and American Society of Testing & 
Materials (ASTM). 

c. Cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical.  
Subsurface drainage shall be provided as necessary for stability. 

d. Fill slopes shall be no steeper than three horizontal to one vertical.  Neither 
cut nor fill slopes shall be located on natural slopes of three to one or 
steeper, or where fill slope toes out within twelve (12) feet horizontally of 
the top of existing or planned cut slope. 

e. Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes shall be set back from structures and 
property lines as necessary to accommodate drainage features and drainage 
structures. 

Staff 
Comments 

A directional grading plan submitted. Site appears to be fairly flat with minimal site 
grading.  
 

--135--



☒ ☐ ☐ B. 5. The developer shall provide storm sewers and/or drainage areas of adequate size and 
number to contain the runoff upon the property in conformance with the applicable 
Federal, State and local regulations.  The developer shall provide copies of state 
permits for shallow injection wells (drywells).  Drainage plans shall be reviewed by 
planning staff and shall meet the approval of the city engineer. Developer shall 
provide a copy of EPA’s “NPDES General Permit for Storm-water Discharge from 
Construction Activity” for all construction activity affecting more than one acre. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No drainage calculations provided for drywell capacities. Calculations shall be submitted 
at final design. 
 
A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be necessary for any disturbances 
greater than 1 acre, and should be provided at final design. 
 

16.04.100: Overlay Districts  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

      
 

            A. Flood Hazard Overlay District: 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivision located within the Flood Hazard Overlay 
District shall comply with all provisions of Section 4.10 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

A. 2.  Subdivisions located partially in the Flood Hazard Overlay District shall have 
designated building envelopes outside the Flood Hazard Overlay District to the extent 
possible. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ A. 3. Any platted lots adjacent to the Big Wood River or its tributaries shall have designated 
building envelopes. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A  

☐ ☐ ☒ B. Hillside Overlay District: 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 1. Subdivisions or portions of subdivisions located within the Hillside Overlay District 
shall comply with all provisions of Section 4.14, of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 
 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. 2. Subdivisions located partially in the Hillside Overlay District shall have designated 
building envelopes outside the Hillside Overlay District. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☒ ☐ ☐ B. 3. All approved subdivisions shall contain a condition that a Site Alteration Permit is 
required before any development occurs. 
 

--136--



Staff 
Comments 

Developer shall meet this standard. 

16.04.110: Parks, Pathways and Other Green Spaces 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

A. Parks and Pathways: Unless otherwise provided, every subdivision shall set aside a 
Park and/or Pathway(s) in accordance with standards set forth herein. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Park dedication was part of the Old Cutters subdivision.  No further park dedication is 
required, therefore, none of the Park Standards herein are applicable. 

16.05: Improvements Required:  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.010 Minimum Improvements Required: It shall be a requirement of the Developer to 
construct the minimum infrastructure improvements set forth herein and any required 
infrastructure improvements for the subdivision, all to City Standards and procedures, 
set forth in Title 18 of the Hailey Municipal Code and adopted by ordinance in 
accordance with the notice and hearing procedures provided in Idaho Code §67-6509. 
Alternatives to the minimum improvement standards may be recommended for 
approval by the City Engineer and approved by the City Council at its sole discretion 
only upon showing that the alternative is clearly superior in design and effectiveness 
and will promote the public health, safety and general welfare. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The applicant intends to construct all necessary infrastructure if the project is approved. 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Plans Filed, Maintained: Six (6) copies of all improvement plans shall be filed with the 
City Engineer and made available to each department head.  Upon final approval two 
(2) sets of revised plans shall be returned to the Developer at the pre-construction 
conference with the City Engineer’s written approval thereon.  One set of final plans 
shall be on-site at all times for inspection purposes and to note all field changes upon. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The applicant shall meet this standard.  

☒ ☐ ☐ B.  Preconstruction Meeting: Prior to the start of any construction, it shall be required 
that a pre-construction meeting be conducted with the Developer or his authorized 
representative/engineer, the contractor, the City Engineer and appropriate City 
departments.  An approved set of plans shall be provided to the Developer and 
contractor at or shortly after this meeting. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The applicant shall meet this standard. 

☒ ☐ ☐ C.  Term Of Guarantee Of Improvements: The developer shall guarantee all 
improvements pursuant to this Section for no less than one year from the date of 
approval of all improvements as complete and satisfactory by the city engineer, 
except that parks shall be guaranteed and maintained by the developer for a period of 
two years. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

The applicant shall meet this standard.  

 
16.05.020: Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping  

--137--



☐ ☐ ☒ 
 

16.05.020 Streets, Sidewalks, Lighting, Landscaping: The developer shall construct all streets, 
alleys, curb and gutter, lighting, sidewalks, street trees and landscaping, and irrigation 
systems to meet City Standards, the requirements of this ordinance, the approval of 
the Council, and to the finished grades which have been officially approved by the city 
engineer as shown upon approved plans and profiles.  The developer shall pave all 
streets and alleys with an asphalt plant-mix, and shall chip-seal streets and alleys 
within one year of construction.   
 

Staff 
Comments 

All streets, alleys sidewalks and street trees are in place as part of the Old Cutters 
subdivision. 
 

☒ ☐ ☐ A. Street Cuts: Street cuts made for the installation of services under any existing 
improved public street shall be repaired in a manner which shall satisfy the Street 
Superintendent, shall have been approved by the Hailey City Engineer or his 
authorized representative, and shall meet City Standards.  Repair may include 
patching, skim coats of asphalt or, if the total area of asphalt removed exceeds 25% of 
the street area, the complete removal and replacement of all paving adjacent to the 
development.  Street cut repairs shall also be guaranteed for no less than one year. 
(Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No street cuts will be needed. 
 

 
16.05.030: Sewer Connections 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.030 Sewer Connections: The developer shall construct a municipal sanitary sewer 
connection for each and every developable lot within the development.  The 
developer shall provide sewer mains of adequate size and configuration in accordance 
with City standards, and all federal, state, and local regulations. Such mains shall 
provide wastewater flow throughout the development.  All sewer plans shall be 
submitted to the city engineer for review and approval.  At the city engineer’s 
discretion, plans may be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) for review and comments.  
 

Staff 
Comments 

An engineered sewer plan was submitted to the city on April 10, 2020. The city engineer 
will bring any comments to the April 20, 2020 meeting. 
 

 
16.05.040: Water Connections 

☒? ☐ ☐ A.  Requirements: The developer shall construct a municipal potable water connection, 
water meter and water meter vault in accordance with City Standards or other 
equipment as may be approved by the city engineer, for each and every developable 
lot within the development. The developer shall provide water mains and services of 
adequate size and configuration in accordance with City Standards, and all federal, 
state, and local regulations. Such water connection shall provide all necessary 
appurtenances for fire protection, including fire hydrants, which shall be located in 
accordance with the IFC and under the approval of the Hailey Fire Chief. All water 
plans shall be submitted to the city engineer for review and approval. At the City 
Engineer’s discretion, plans may be required to be submitted to the Idaho Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for review and comments. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Easements for proposed water lines are insufficient in the current proposal. Staff 
requests that easements be added for shared water lines. It is encouraged that water 

--138--



lines have a minimum setback of ten feet (10’) and that they are not near buildings. 
Adding easements has been made a condition of approval. 
 
Staff is currently reviewing the proposed water plan with applicant engineers and will 
bring any comments, changes, or additions to the April 20, 2020 meeting.  

☐ ☐ ☒ B.  Townsite Overlay: Within the Townsite Overlay District, where water main lines 
within the alley are less than six (6) feet deep, the developer shall install insulating 
material (blue board insulation or similar material) for each and every individual water 
service line and main line between and including the subject property and the nearest 
public street, as recommended by the City Engineer. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 
 

 
16.05.050: Drainage  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.050 Drainage: The developer shall provide drainage areas of adequate size and number to 
meet the approval of the street superintendent and the city engineer or his authorized 
representative. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No drainage calculations have been submitted. Review of drainage calculations will take 
place during final design. Design appears to be sufficient for anticipated runoff. 
 

 
16.05.060: Utilities  

☒? ☐ ☐ 16.05.060 Utilities: The developer shall construct each and every individual service connection 
and all necessary trunk lines, and/or conduits for those improvements, for natural gas, 
electricity, telephone, and cable television to the property line before placing base 
gravel for the street or alley. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

No dry utilities shown.  Additional utility company comments and engineering details will 
be required at final design. 
 
All utilities shall be installed underground. 

 
16.05.070: Parks, Green Space  

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.05.070 Parks, Green Space: The developer shall improve all parks and green space areas as 
presented to and approved by the hearing examiner or commission and council. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

See section 16.04.110- all required parks and green space is complete as part of the Old 
Cutters Subdivision. 

 
16.05.080: Installation To Specifications; Inspections  

☒ 
 

☐ ☐ 16.05.080 Installation to Specifications; Inspections: All improvements are to be installed under 
the specifications and inspection of the city engineer or his authorized representative.  
The minimum construction requirements shall meet City Standards or the Department 
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) standards, whichever is the more stringent. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

An inspection schedule will be established for any/all components at final design.  All 
infrastructure must meet City of Hailey Specifications and will be further evaluated in 

--139--



greater detail at final design. The inspection process of the proposed public 
improvements shall include materials testing to ensure the compliance with City of 
Hailey code. 
 
The City will need to select an inspector, to be paid for by the applicant, for all water, 
sewer, and roadway infrastructure during construction. 

 
16.05.090: Completion; Inspections; Acceptance  

☒ ☐ ☐ A.  Installation of all infrastructure improvements must be completed by the developer, 
and inspected and accepted by the City prior to signature of the plat by City 
representatives, or according to a phasing agreement.  A post-construction conference 
shall be requested by the developer and/or contractor and conducted with the 
developer and/or contractor, the city engineer, and appropriate City departments to 
determine a punch list of items for final acceptance. 
 

Staff 
Comments 

All infrastructure must meet City of Hailey Specifications and will be further evaluated in 
greater detail at final design. The inspection process of the proposed public 
improvements shall include materials testing to ensure the compliance with City of 
Hailey code. 
 
The City will need to select an inspector, to be paid for by the applicant, for all water, 
sewer, and roadway infrastructure during construction. 

☐ ☐ ☒ B. The developer may, in lieu of actual construction, provide to the City security pursuant 
to Section 3.3.7, for all infrastructure improvements to be completed by developer 
after the final plat has been signed by City representatives. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Completion of all major infrastructure by the developer is preferred over bonding. 
 

 
16.05.100: As Built Plans and Specifications  

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.05.100 As Built Plans and Specifications: Prior to the acceptance by the City of any 
improvements installed by the developer, three (3) sets of “as-built plans and 
specifications” certified by the developer’s engineer shall be filed with the city 
engineer. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

As-built drawings will be required. 
 

 

16.08: Townhouses:  

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.010 Plat Procedure:  The developer of the townhouse development shall submit with the 
preliminary plat application and all other information required herein a copy of the 
proposed party wall agreement and the proposed document(s) creating an association of 
owners of the proposed townhouse sublots, which shall adequately provide for the 
control (including billing, where applicable) and maintenance of all common utilities, 
commonly held facilities, garages, parking and/or green spaces. Prior to final plat 
approval, the developer shall submit to the city a final copy of the party wall agreement 
and any other such documents and shall record the documents prior to or at the same 

--140--



time of the recordation of the plat, which plat shall reflect the recording instrument 
numbers thereupon. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.020 Garages:  All garages shall be designated on the preliminary and final plats and on all 
deeds as part of the particular townhouse units. Detached garages may be platted on 
separate sublots; provided, that the ownership of detached garages is appurtenant to 
specific townhouse units on the townhouse plat and that the detached garage(s) may not 
be sold and/or owned separate from any dwelling unit(s) within the townhouse 
development. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.030 Storage, Parking Areas:  Residential townhouse developments shall provide parking 
spaces according to the requirements of title 17, chapter 17.09 of this code. (Ord. 1191, 
2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

Per the Hailey Municipal Code, residential units of less than 1,000 ft2 are required to have 
one (1) parking space per residential dwelling unit, and single-family dwellings greater than 
1,000 ft2 require a minimum of two (2) parking spaces per unit. 
 
The project is comprised of seven (7) single-family dwellings, five (5) of which are less than 
1,000 ft2 in area, and two (2) of which are greater than 1,000 ft2, thus requiring nine (9) 
total onsite parking spaces. The site plan shows a total of eleven (11) onsite parking spaces, 
including seven (7) private garages, and four (4) guest parking spaces, of which one (1) is an 
accessible parking space.  
 
Parking requirements have been met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.040  Construction Standards: All townhouse development construction shall be in accordance 
with the IBC, IRC and IFC. Each townhouse unit must have separate water, sewer and 
utility services, which do not pass through another building or unit. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

This standard will be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.050  General Applicability: All other provisions of this title and all applicable ordinances, rules 
and regulations of the city and all other governmental entities having jurisdiction shall be 
complied with by townhouse developments. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

This standard will be met. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 16.08.060  Expiration: Townhouse developments which have received final plat approval shall have a 
period of three (3) calendar years from the date of final plat approval by the council to 
obtain a building permit. Developments which have not received a building permit shall 
be null and void and the plats associated therewith shall be vacated by the council. If a 
development is to be phased, construction of the second and succeeding phases shall be 
contingent upon completion of the preceding phase unless the requirement is waived by 
the council. Further, if construction on any townhouse development or phase of any 
development ceases or is not diligently pursued for a period of three (3) years without 
the prior consent of the council, that portion of the plat pertinent to the undeveloped 
portion of the development shall be vacated. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

This standard will be met. 

--141--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=4&find=17-17.09


☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.070  Conversion: The conversion by subdivision of existing units into townhouses shall not be 
subject to section 16.04.110 of this title. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

N/A 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.08.080  Density: The maximum number of cottage townhouse units on any parcel shall be twelve 
(12), and not more than two (2) cottage townhouse developments shall be constructed 
adjacent to each other. (Ord. 1191, 2015) 
 

Staff 
Comments 

A total of nine (9) cottage units are planned in phases 1 and 2. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 16.11.010 Exceptions: Whenever the tract to be subdivided is, in the shape or size, or is surrounded 
by such development or unusual conditions that the strict application of the 
requirements contained herein would result in real difficulties and substantial hardships 
or injustices, the council may vary or modify such requirements by making findings for 
their decision so that the developer is allowed to develop his property in a reasonable 
manner, while ensuring that the public welfare and interests of the city and surrounding 
area  are protected and the general intent and spirit of this title are preserved. As used in 
this section, the phrase “real difficulties and substantial hardships or injustices” shall 
apply only to situations where strict application of the requirements of this title will deny 
to the developer the reasonable and beneficial use of the property in question, and not in 
situations where the developer establishes only that exceptions will allow more 
financially feasible or profitable subdivision. (Ord. 1191, 2015).  
 

   Staff 
Comments 

This standard is not needed.  
 

 
Summary and Suggested Conditions 
The Commission shall review the proposed plat and continue the public hearing, approve, conditionally 
approve, or deny the preliminary plat. If approved, the plat application will be forwarded to the Council.  
If the Short Plat process is used, only the Final Plat is required for Council review. 

 
The following conditions are suggested to be placed on any approval of this application: 

a) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met.  

b) All City infrastructure requirements shall be met as outlined in Section 5 of the Hailey Subdivision 
Ordinance. Detailed plans for all infrastructure to be installed or improved at or adjacent to the 
site shall be submitted for Department approval and shall meet City Standards where required. 

I. The Applicant shall submit engineered plans for water delivery suitable to the City 
Engineer and Water Division Manager. 

II. The applicant shall abandon any unused water services at the water main. 

c) An encroachment permit should be applied for prior to any work in the public right of way. 

d) Best management practices shall be utilized, particularly adjacent to the canal easement, to 
prevent water pollution. 

e) The final plat shall include plat notes #1 through #9 as stated on the approved preliminary plat 
with the following amendments and additions:  

I. The Applicant shall include an additional plat note #10 indicating that no guest on-street 
parking is permitted. 

--142--

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=16.04.110


f) The preliminary plat shall include easements for the following utilities: 

I. Shared water lines – easement shall include a minimum setback of ten feet (10’) 

II. Power/Cable/Television 

III. Gas 

IV. Any other utilities where they extend beyond designated common space. 

g) All improvements and other requirements shall be completed and accepted, or surety provided 
pursuant to Sections 16.04 and 16.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, prior to recordation of the 
final plat. 

h) The final plat must be submitted within one (1) calendar year from the date of approval of the 
preliminary plat, unless otherwise allowed for within a phasing agreement.   

i) Any subdivision inspection fees due shall be paid prior to recording the final plat. 
 
Motion Language:  
Approval: 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old 
Cutters, with conditions (a) through (i) finding that the application meets all City standards.  
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old 
Cutters, finding that ________________ (Council should cite which standards are not met and provided 
the reason why each identified standard is not met). 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing upon the Preliminary Plat Application for Lena Cottages 
Subdivision, Lot 9, Block 3, Old Cutters to __________________ [the Council should specify a date]. 
 

--143--



Return to AIS 

--144--



--145--



--146--



Return to AIS 

--147--



--148--



--149--



--150--



--151--



--152--



--153--



--154--



--155--



--156--



--157--



--158--



--159--



--160--



--161--



--162--



--163--



--164--



--165--



--166--



--167--



--168--



--169--



Return to AIS 

--170--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--171--



 

 

AGENDA OF THE 
HAILEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday June 2, 2020 * Hailey City Hall Meeting Room 
4:00 PM 

Please join our meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
 

Via teleconference: +1 (872) 240-3311, Access Code: 543-667-133 
Via One-touch: United States tel:+18722403311,,543667133#, 

From your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofHaileyCityCouncil 

 
ACTION ITEM = a vote may occur but is not required to be taken 

ACTION ITEM ...................................................................................................................................................................   
 

4:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER -             Open Session for Public Concerns  
  
CONSENT AGENDA: 
CA 000  Grant Agreements 
CA 000 grant contracts 
CA 000 2 Library grant agreements .................................................................................................................................  
CA 000  
CA 000 ACTION ITEM ...........................................................................................................................................................  
CA 000 ACTION ITEM 
CA 000 Consideration of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision regarding a Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) Application by ARCH Community Housing Trust on behalf of Blaine County, represented by Mark 
Sanders, The Architects Office. The PUD is to construct two multi-family housing buildings, one Senior 
Community Housing Building, and one Family Community Housing Building. ACTION ITEM ......................  

CA 000 ACTION ITEM  .........................................................................................................................................................   
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of March 23, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..........................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of March 24, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..........................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of March 26, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..........................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 6, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 9, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 10, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 13, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 17, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 22, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of April 27, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ..............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of May 4, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM .................................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of May 5, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM .................................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of May 11, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ...............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of May 19, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ...............................  
CA 000 Motion to approve minutes of May 26, 2020 and to suspend reading of them ACTION ITEM ...............................  
CA 000 Motion to ratify claims paid in May 2020 ACTION ITEM .......................................................................................  
CA 000 Motion to approve claims for expenses incurred during the month of April, 2020, and claims for expenses due by 

contract in May, 2020 ACTION ITEM ..................................................................................................................  
 
MAYOR’S REMARKS: 
MR 000  
 
PROCLAMATIONS & PRESENTATIONS:   
 

--172--



 

 

PR 000   
PR 000  
  
 
APPOINTMENTS & AWARDS 
AA  000  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
PH 000 Consideration of circulation alternatives for the Wertheimer Park/Rodeo/Blaine Manor/Hailey Elementary School 

area:  presentation by Chase Goulay of Ben Young Landscape Architects and Michael Bulls of Ruscitto 
Latham Blanton ACTION ITEM ............................................................................................................................  

 
 
NEW BUSINESS:    
NB 000     Introduction of Capital Improvement Budget for FY 2021 ACTION ITEM .........................................................  

 
OLD BUSINESS:    
OB 000   
  
STAFF REPORTS:  Staff Reports               Council Reports                   Mayor’s Reports 
SR 000 Draft of next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting agenda ...............................................................................  
SR 000 Draft of next City Council meeting agenda .................................................................................................................  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Real Property Acquisition under IC 74-206 (1)(c) 
 
Matters & Motions from Executive Session or Workshop    
      Next Ordinance Number - _____      Next Resolution Number- 2018-01 

 

--173--



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda 

--174--


	052620 Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park 2020.pdf
	5.26.20 The Hunger Coalition Lunch in the Park 2020
	The Hunger Coalition Decision Agreement

	2020 05 26  Packet CC PP Sweetwater Block 2 Phase 1.pdf
	2020 05 26 SR Sweetwater Block 2 Phase 1 001.pdf
	Complete Application 
	Engineering: No comments at this time.  
	Life/Safety: No comments at this time. 
	Building: No comments at this time.
	Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.
	Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be as specified in City Standards for the type of street.
	1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
	2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green space, public lands, or other destinations.
	3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels.
	6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels.
	7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural resource areas.

	20200406 FF PP Sweetwater Block 2 FINAL.pdf
	Complete Application 
	Engineering: No comments at this time.  
	Life/Safety: No comments at this time. 
	Building: No comments at this time.
	Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.
	Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be as specified in City Standards for the type of street.
	1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
	2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green space, public lands, or other destinations.
	3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels.
	6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels.
	7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural resource areas.


	2020 05 26  Packet  CC PP Lena Cottages.pdf
	PP SR Lena Cottages 005.pdf
	Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey and shall be in accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.
	Width: Street width is to be measured from property line to property line. The minimum street width, unless specifically approved otherwise by the Council, shall be as specified in City Standards for the type of street.
	1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
	2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green space, public lands, or other destinations.
	3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels.
	6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels.
	7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural resource areas.


	2020 05 26 Quigley Townhomes Packet.pdf
	SR Quigley Townhomes 2020 05 26 001.pdf
	Applicability: The configuration and development of proposed subdivisions shall be subject to and meet the provisions and standards found in this Title, the Zoning Title and any other applicable Ordinance or policy of the City of Hailey, and shall be in accordance with general provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.
	1. Streets, whether public or private, shall provide an interconnected system and shall be adequate to accommodate anticipated vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
	2. Non-vehicular circulation routes shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle ways and provide an interconnected system to streets, parks and green space, public lands, or other destinations.
	3. Water main lines and sewer main lines shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	4. Other utilities including power, telephone, cable, and gas shall be designed in the most effective layout feasible.
	5. Park land shall be most appropriately located on the Contiguous Parcels.
	6. Grading and drainage shall be appropriate to the Contiguous Parcels.
	7. Development shall avoid easements and hazardous or sensitive natural resource areas.



	Park: McKercher Park
	FieldFacility: front lawn area
	Type of Event: ArborFest
	Dates of Use: Saturday, June 13
	From: 10am
	To: 2pm
	Name: City of Hailey
	Name_2: Hailey Tree Committete
	Mailing Address 1: 
	Mailing Address 2: 
	Mailing Address 1_2: 
	Mailing Address 2_2: 
	Phone: 
	Phone_2: 
	Email: 
	Email_2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: 
	Text28: 
	Text29: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off


